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Management Discussion (cont’d)

ARIANTEC GLOBAL BERHAD (Formerly known as Global Soft (MSC) Bhd.) (533441-W)

ARIANTEC
in the 
Headlines
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- With increasing attention for High

Speed Broad Band (“HSBB”)

services, areas not covered

under the HSBB initiative will

become a market for our

Channel Bonding solution.

- Our current contract with 3,000

schools creates a need 

for maintenance and support

services- another one of our core

services.

- Increased internet usage should

escalate demand for Network

Security products and Managed

Security services- both of which

are our core offerings.

- The increased number of

enterprise users opens a market

for us to offer Network

Management Services as an

outsourced support.

- Possibility of regional expansion

as most Asian markets are

trending towards increased

internet usage and enterprise

users.

OUR OPPORTUNITIES

OUR COMPETITIVE ADVANTAGE

As principals of Channel Bonding 
an Smart Powerbar we enjoy 
ownership and control

Network Performance
Enhancements generate a Return
On Investment for clients.

BRANDING

PROPRIETARY

TECHNOLOGY

COST SAVINGS

FOR CLIENTS
TECHNOLOGY

Partnerships with globally
renowned brands

Easy access to Network 
Equipment that features 
new technology

OUR STRENGTHS
- Proven management with more than 30 years of combined IT experience

- Driven by young and dynamic entrepreneurs

- Principals of proprietary in-demand technology

- Sole distributors of key IT solutions
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Director’s
Profile

ARIANTEC GLOBAL BERHAD (Formerly known as Global Soft (MSC) Bhd.) (533441-W)

DATUK LOW KOK THAI, a Malaysian aged 40, is the Executive Chairman and also Managing Director of the Company. He was
appointed to the Board on 3 January 2001. He is also a director of the subsidiaries of Ariantec Global Berhad (“AGB”). 
He heads the R&D Department and is a co-founder of the Company. He graduated with a Degree in Computer Science from
Campbell University in the United States in 1993.

Datuk Low Kok Thai began his career in Bass Consulting Sdn. Bhd., an IT consultancy company, in 1993 as an analyst
programmer, where he was involved in the development of software solutions for the insurance industry. He subsequently joined
Maxigrid Computer Sdn. Bhd., an IT solutions company, in 1994 as a senior analyst programmer, where he was in charge of
the implementation of its accounting and financial software. He moved to ISC Solutions Sdn. Bhd. in 1995, a subsidiary of
Patimas Berhad, as an IT consultant, where he was involved in software development and implementation. He was then
transferred to GMH (MSC) Sdn. Bhd., another subsidiary of Patimas Berhad, where he was in charge of R&D for the
development of business solutions in that company.

He has no family relationship with any Director and/or major shareholder of AGB. He has no conflict of interest with AGB
and no conviction for any offences within the past 10 years. 

VINCENT LOY GHEE YAW, a Malaysian aged 35, was appointed to the Board as Executive Director on 23 November 2009.
He obtained a Bachelor of Science from Campbell University in the United States, majoring in Information System Engineering.

He has more than 10 years experience in network infrastructure and managing security industry in both local and regional
organisations. Vincent Loy’s forte is the use of technology to impact business efficiency. He has also achieved a number of
technical and management accreditations throughout his career. In 2006, he acquired Ariantec Sdn Bhd together with Chen
Kong Kheng.

He has no family relationship with any Director and/or major shareholder of AGB. He has no conflict of interest with AGB
and no conviction for any offences within the past 10 years.

CHEN KONG KHENG, a Malaysian aged 40, was appointed to the Board as Executive Director on 23 November 2009. He
obtained a Diploma in Electronic Engineering from the Federal Institute of Technology, Malaysia. He began his career as a
Technical Support Engineer with Sertech Systems in 1995, where he was engaged in technology consultancy. He joined Equant
Integration Services Sdn Bhd as a Technical Engineer in 1996, where his duties included performing troubleshooting for
software and hardware systems. He subsequently joined SIS Distribution Sdn Bhd as Account Manager in 1997. He joined
Transition Systems Sdn Bhd as the Country Manager in 2000, where his responsibilities included promoting the Company’s
products. In 2006, he acquired Ariantec Sdn Bhd together with Vincent Loy Ghee Yaw.

He has no family relationship with any Director and/or major shareholder of AGB. He has no conflict of interest with AGB
and no conviction for any offences within the past 10 years. 

from left to right

Datuk Low Kok Thai
Executive Chairman/Managing Director

Vincent Loy Ghee Yaw
Executive Director

Chen Kong Kheng
Executive Director
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HEE CHEE KEONG, a Malaysian aged 38, was appointed to the Board as Executive Director on 2 November 2004. He was
redesignated to Non-Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company on 1 January 2009. He also sits on the boards of
the subsidiaries of AGB. He is a Chartered Accountant of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants. He is also a member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He  has more than fifteen  (15) years of working experience in both private and
public companies.

During the course of his career, he was involved in various industries including manufacturing, property, construction, leisure
and entertainment. Prior to his appointment in AGB, he was Group Accountant in a public listed company, assisting in the
restructuring exercise of the company.

He is a member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Share Option Committee.
He has no family relationship with any Director and/or major shareholder of AGB. He has no conflict of interest with AGB

and no conviction for any offences within the past 10 years.

LEE TECK MENG, a Malaysian aged 43, was appointed to the Board on 19 November 2002. He holds a Master in Business
Administration from Senior International University, Canada, which he obtained in 2001. He also holds an Advanced Diploma,
Chartered Institute of Marketing, United Kingdom, and an Advanced Diploma of Business and Management Studies from
Institute of Swansea, University of Welsh, United Kingdom, which he obtained in 1991 and 1993 respectively.

Mr. Lee has over twenty (20) years business experience in oleochemical and biodegradable detergent. In 2003 he created
a biodegradable household detergent brand "KLEENSO". He also holds directorship in a few private limited companies.

He was elected as Secretary General of Small & Medium Industries (SMI) Association of Malaysia in 2005. He has been
elected as Vice President since 1999. He was appointed as a Council Committee of National Small & Medium Enterprise Council
since 1999. Mr. Lee has been appointed as the Advisor of China Overseas Friendship Association Qi Qi Har City, Heilong Jiang
Province, China since 2003.

Mr. Lee has also been assigned as Marketing Instructor for the Malaysia Government Agency - SMIDEC (Small & Medium
Industries Development Corporation of Malaysia) Conducting Marketing Training for SMI entrepreneur since 2003. 

He is the Chairman of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Share Option Committee, and a member of the
Nomination Committee.

He has no family relationship with any Director and/or major shareholder of AGB . He has no conflict of interest with AGB
had and no conviction for any offences within the past 10 years.

DATO’ NG BONG CHING, a Malaysian aged 48, was appointed to the Board on 13 August 2004. He holds a Diploma in Media
and Public Communication.

Dato’ Ng Bong Ching has over nineteen (19) years business experience in the Media and Public Communication sectors.
He began his career as a journalist in 1986 and attained the position of Deputy News Editor before he joined the business and
corporate sectors.

Dato’ Ng Bong Ching joined The People’s Insurance (M) Bhd as Manager responsible for business development and
customer relationships in 1995. He then joined Nanyang Siang Pau in 2000 as a Regional Manager in charge of advertisement
and circulation in Selangor and Klang Valley. He is the Business Director for Kenanga Wholesale City Sdn. Bhd., Project Director
for Seni Kenanga Sdn Bhd, as well as Director for Waz Lian Foundation. He also holds directorships in a few private limited
companies. 

He is the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit, Remuneration and Share Option Committee.
Dato’ Ng Bong Ching has no family relationship with any Director and/or major shareholder of AGB. He has no conflict of

interest with AGB and no conviction for any offences within the past 10 years.

from left to right

Hee Chee Keong
Non-Independent Non-Executive

Director 

Lee Teck Meng
Independent Non-Executive Director

Dato' Ng Bong Ching
Independent Non-Executive Director
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Calendar of Events 2009-2010

ARIANTEC GLOBAL BERHAD (Formerly known as Global Soft (MSC) Bhd.) (533441-W)

Nov 
,
09

Takeover
(from left) Ariantec Global Executive Director
Chen Kong Kheng and Vincent Loy,
Executive Chairman Datuk Low Kok Thai,
Ariantec Sdn Bhd MD Chubby Lee Yeow
Choy and Non-Independent Non-Executive
Director Hee Chee Keong at the EGM 
on 23 Nevember 2009 in KL, where Global
Soft (MSC) Bhd acquired Ariantec Sd Bhd.

Dec 
,
09

UniKL Workshop at Gardens
Hotel on December 2009

Jan 
,
10

Company Annual Dinner 2009
The highlight of for the Annual Dinner was
the inter-department/subsidiary karaoke
competition themed ‘Ariantec-Idol (Karaoke)
Competition’. It entertained the audience
and showcased our saff hidden talents.

Feb 
,
10

International Business Review
Executive Directors of Ariantec Global
Berhad Vincent Loy and Alex Chen were
Interviewed by International Business Review
of Global Leaders, Business & Innovations.

May 
,
10

Partnership Agreement with OIT
Ariantec and Oulim Information Technology
(“OIT”), a leading global provider of ICT
network security in South Korea, signed an
MoU on the partnership agreement, witnessed
by South Korean ambassador Bong Ryull
Yang (third left). From the left are Ariantec’s
executive director Vincent Loy, OIT’s CEO
Hyeung Youl Cho, the South Korean
ambassador and Ariantec’s MD Chubby Lee.

Mar 
,
10

GiTN Training at Port Dickson,
Tiara Beach Resort on March 2010

Apr 
,
10

Signing of MOU 
Ariantec and Australian-based, Exinda
signed a Memorandum of Understanding  for
technology collaboration. 
(from left) Ariantec Executive Director Alex
Chen, Vincent Loy, Australian Trade
Commission representative Paul Martins,
Exinda founder Con Nikolouzakis and 
Apac Exinda Director Yew Loong Kum at the
signing ceremony on 14 Apr 2010.
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A. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition and Balance of the Board

Currently, the Board consists of six (6) members
comprising the following:

• One (1) Executive Chairman cum Managing
Director

• Two (2) Executive Directors

• One (1) Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

• Two (2) Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Board is led by the Executive Chairman cum
Managing Director, Datuk Low Kok Thai. The current
Board composition complies with the Listing
Requirements of the Bursa Malaysia for the ACE
Market.

The Board comprises of professionals, from various
background, capable of bringing in-dept and diverse
experiences, expertises and perspectives to the
Group’s business operation. The Board’s profiles are
set out in this Annual Report on pages 16 to 17.

Duties and Responsibilities

The Group acknowledges the importance of having
an effective Board to lead and control the Group.
The Board is ultimately responsible for the
stewardship of the Group’s strategic direction and
development. The Board’s responsibilities include
reviewing and adopting the Group’s goals,
objectives and strategic plans set by the
management, monitoring the achievement of the
goals and objectives, reviewing the performance
and identifying the Group’s principal risks.

Meetings

During the financial year ended 31 December 2009,
the Board met on 5 occasions. The Board deliberated
on a variety of matters.

Board of Directors Attendance in 2009

Datuk Low Kok Thai 5/5

Vincent Loy Ghee Yaw 2/2
(Appointed on 23/11/2009)     

Chen Kong Kheng 2/2
(Appointed on 23/11/2009)            

Dato’ Low Kok Chuan 2/3
(Resigned on 23/11/2009)

Mr. Eng Kin Hoong 3/3
(Resigned on 23/11/2009)

Mr. Hee Chee Keong 5/5

Mr. Lee Teck Meng 4/5

Dato’ Ng Bong Ching 4/5

Supply of information

Members of the Board have access to information
on a timely basis to enable them to discharge their
duties and responsibilities.

Directors are each provided with Notice of Board
Meeting and relevant documents and information for
each agenda item in advance of each meeting 
to ensure that Directors have ample time to 
study them and be properly prepared for discussion.
The relevant Board members will provide
comprehensive explanation of pertinent issue and
recommendations by the management. The issue
would then be deliberated and discussed by the
Board prior to decision-making. All meetings of the
Board are duly recorded in the Board Minutes.

In furtherance of their duties, the Board has
unrestricted access timely and accurate information
pertaining to the Group as well as to the advice 
and services of the Company Secretaries and
independent advisers whenever appropriate at the
Group’s expense.

The Board of Directors appreciates the importance of adopting high standards of corporate

governance as a means of sustaining the Group’s long-term growth and increasing shareholders’

value. The Group is currently moving towards compliance with the principles and adoption of the

Best Practices as recommended by the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance (“The Code”).

in observing its high standard of transparency, accountability and integrity.

Statement of 
Corporate Governance

Corporate_0062  01/06/2010  10:40 AM  Page 19



20 ARIANTEC GLOBAL BERHAD (Formerly known as Global Soft (MSC) Bhd.) (533441-W)

Statement of Corporate Governance (cont’d)

A. BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont’d)

Appointment to the Board

The appointment of any additional Director is made
as and when it is deemed necessary by the Board
with due consideration given to the mix of expertise
and experience required for discharging its 
duties and responsibilities effectively. The Board 
is assisted in this regard by the Nomination
Committee, details of which are set out on page 23
of this Annual Report.

Re-election

The procedure for re-election of directors by
rotation is set out in the Company’s Articles of
Association. At the first annual general meeting of
the company, all directors shall retire from office,
and at the annual general meeting in every
subsequent year one-third of the directors for the
time being, or, if their number is not three (3) or a
multiple of the three (3), then the number nearest to
one-third, shall retire from office provided always
that all directors shall retire from office once at least
in each three (3) years but shall be eligible for 
re-election.

Directors over seventy (70) years of age are subject
for re-appointment annually in accordance with
Section 129(6) of the Companies Act, 1965.

For the forthcoming Annual General Meeting (AGM),
Datuk Low Kok Thai who will be subject for
retirement by rotation in accordance with Article 103
of the Company’s Articles of Association, 
Mr. Vincent Loy Ghee Yaw and Mr Chen Kong
Kheng who retire in accordance to Article 110 of the
Company’s Articles of Association, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.

Director’s Training

The Board believes that continuous training for
Directors is important to enable them to discharge
their duties effectively. As such, the Directors are
continuously encouraged to attend various training
programs and seminars to ensure that they are 
kept abreast on various issues pertaining to 
the constantly changing environment within 
which the business of the Group operates,
particularly in areas of corporate governance and
regulatory compliance.

All the Directors have completed the Mandatory
Accreditation Program (MAP) conducted by
Bursatra Sdn Bhd. Throughout the financial year
under review, all members of the Board have
individually or collectively attended  various
conferences, seminars, workshop and programmes
organised by relevant regulatory authorities and
professional bodies:-

1. In-house training on the latest updates of the
Companies Act, 1965

2. MASB Conference : Accounting Challenges in
Turbulent Times

3. The National Accountants Conference 2009

The newly appointed directors Mr. Vincent Loy Ghee
Yaw and Mr. Chen Kong Kheng had also completed
the MAP conducted by Bursatra Sdn. Bhd. on 
14 and 15 April 2010.

B. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Level Make-up and procedure of Remuneration

Levels of remuneration should be sufficient to
attract and retain the directors needed to run the
Company successfully. The component parts of
remuneration are structured so as to link rewards to
corporate and individual performance, in the case of
executive directors. In the case of non-executive
directors, the determination of the remuneration
packages is a matter of the Board as a whole 
with the director concerned abstaining from
deliberation and voting on decision in respect of his
individual remuneration. The level of remuneration
should reflect the experience and level of
responsibilities undertaken by the particular non-
executive concerned.
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B. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (cont’d)

Details of Directors’ Remuneration

The aggregate remuneration of directors for the financial year ended 31 December 2009 were as follow:

Component Executive Directors Non-Executive Directors Total

Salaries/other emoluments 200,295 110,380 310,675

Fees – 35,000 35,000

Total 200,295 145,380 345,675

Remuneration of the Director’s in bands of RM50,000 is tabulated below:

Remuneration Band Executive Directors Non-Executive Directors Total No.

RM 50,000 and below 2 2 4

RM 50,001 - RM100,000 2 – 2          

RM100,001 - RM150,000 – 1 1

RM150,001 - RM200,000 – – –

C. SHAREHOLDERS

Dialogue with investor

The Group acknowledges the importance of
communicating with its shareholders and does this
through the Annual Report and the AGM. Other
relevant information is disseminated via circulars to
shareholders, quarterly financial results and various
announcements made from time to time.
All shareholders, including private investors, 
have an opportunity to participate in discussions
with the Board on matters relating to the Group’s
operations and performance at the Company’s
AGM. The Board will try to respond to the
shareholders questions during the AGM and in the
event an immediate answer is not possible, the
Chairman of the Board will arrange for a written
answer to be given to the shareholder at a 
later date. Alternatively, shareholders may 
obtain the Group’s latest announcements and
information via the Bursa Malaysia’s website at
www.bursamalaysia.com.my.

The AGM

The AGM is the principle forum for dialogue with
individual shareholders and investor. It is a crucial
mechanism in shareholders communication for the
company. At the company’s AGM, shareholders
have direct access to the Board and are given the
opportunity to ask questions during the question

and answer session.

D. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Board aims to provide a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Company’s
financial performance, financial position and
prospects through the annual financial statements,
Chairman’s statements and announcement of
quarterly results. In the preparation of the financial
statements, the directors have:

• Adopted suitable accounting policies and
applied them consistently;

• Made judgments and estimates that are prudent
and reasonable;

• Ensured applicable accounting standards 
have been followed, subject to any material
departures, disclosed and explained in the
financial statements; and

• Prepared the financial statements on going
concern basis.
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22 ARIANTEC GLOBAL BERHAD (Formerly known as Global Soft (MSC) Bhd.) (533441-W)

Statement of Corporate Governance (cont’d)

D. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (cont’d)

Internal Control

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining
a system of internal controls, which provides
reasonable assessments of effective and efficient
operations, internal controls and compliance with
laws and regulations.

The Statement on Internal Control as set out 
in page 28 of this Annual Report providing an
overview of the state of internal control within 
the Group.

Relationship with Auditor

The Board has established a formal and transparent
arrangement with the Group’s auditors in seeking
professional advice.

The Group’s auditors play an essential role by
enhancing the reliability of the Group’s financial
statements and providing assurance of that
reliability to users, including the shareholders of
these financial statements.

The auditors have an obligation to bring any
significant defects in the Group’s system of 
control and compliance to the attention of the
Management, and if necessary, to the Audit
Committee and the Board.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT IN
RESPECT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are required to prepare the financial
statements for each financial year, which gives a true
and fair view of the state of affairs, the results and cash
flow of the Group for the financial year ended.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the
Group keeps accounting records with reasonable
accuracy at any time to track the financial position of the
Group. It is also the duty and responsibility of the
Directors to ensure that the financial statements comply
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1965 and
applicable approved accounting standards in Malaysia.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has delegated certain of its responsibilities to
the committees as below to assist the Board in the
discharge of its duties effectively. All Board Committees

are provided with written terms of reference. Details of
the Board committees are provided below.

a) Audit Committee

The report of the Audit Committee is set on
pages 24 to 26.

b) Employees’ Share Option (“ESOS”) Committee

Members of the ESOS Committee shall be
composed of no fewer than two (2) directors.
Currently, the ESOS Committee comprises the
following three members:

Lee Teck Meng (Chairman) 
Independent Non-Executive Director

Dato’ Ng Bong Ching (Member) 
Independent Non-Executive Director

Hee Chee Keong (Member)
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

Functions

1. To assist the Board of the Company in
discharging its responsibilities relating to the
implementation of the Employees’ Share Option
Scheme (“the Scheme”) in accordance with the
relevant laws and regulations including the 
Bye-Laws of the Scheme.

2. To construe and interpret the ESOS and Options
granted under it, to define the terms therein and
to recommend to the Board to establish, amend
and revoke rules and regulations relating to the
ESOS and its administration subject to the 
Bye-Laws of the ESOS.

3. To correct any defect, supply any omission, or
reconcile any inconsistency in the ESOS or in any
agreement providing for an Option in a manner
and to the extent it shall deem necessary to
expedite and make the ESOS fully effective and
in the best interest of the Company.

4. To delegate part of its power as the Committee in
its discretion deem fit in relation to the
administration of ESOS.

5. Perform such other functions as may be agreed
to by the ESOS Committee and the Board of
Directors.

There is no Share Option Committee Meeting held
during the financial year ended 31 December 2009.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (cont’d)

c) Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee shall consist wholly
or mainly non-executive director. Currently, 
the Remuneration Committee comprises  three
members who are wholly non-executive directors:

Lee Teck Meng (Chairman)
Independent Non-Executive Director

Dato’ Ng Bong Ching (Member) 
Independent Non-Executive Director

Hee Chee Keong (Member) 
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director 

Functions

The Remuneration Committee should:-

1. recommend to the board the remuneration of
the executive directors in all its forms, drawing
from outside advice as necessary. The
determination of remuneration packages of 
non-executive directors, including non-executive
chairman, should be a matter for the board as a
whole; and

2. perform such other functions as may be agreed
to by the Remuneration Committee and the
Board of Directors.

One(1) Meeting was held during the financial year
ended 31 December 2009.

d) Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee shall be composed of
no fewer than two (2) members, exclusively of 
non-executive directors and a majority of whom are
independent directors. Currently, the Nomination
Committee comprises the following two members,
both of whom are Independent Non-Executive
Directors:

Dato’ Ng Bong Ching (Chairman) 
Independent Non-Executive Director

Lee Teck Meng (Member)
Independent Non-Executive Director

Functions

The Nomination Committee should:-

1. recommend to the board, candidates for all
directorships to be filled by the shareholders or
the board based on the followings:-

a. skills, knowledge, expertise and experience;

b. professionalism;

c. integrity; and

d. in the case of candidates for the position of
independent non-executive directors, the
Nomination Committee should also evaluate
the candidates’ ability to discharge such
responsibilities/functions as expected from
independent non-executive directors;

2. consider, in making its recommendations,
candidates for directorships proposed by the
chief executive officer and, within the bounds of
practicability, by any other senior executive or
any director or shareholder;

3. recommend to the board, directors to fill the
seats on board committees; 

4. review the directors’ required mix of skills and
experience and other qualities annually, including
core competencies which non-executive
directors should bring to the Board;

5. assess the effectiveness of the board as a whole,
the committees of the board and the 
contribution of each individual, including
independent non-executive directors, as well as
the chief executive officer. All assessments and
evaluations carried out by the Nomination
Committee in the discharge of all its functions
should be properly documented;

6. perform such other functions as may be agreed
to by the Nomination Committee and the Board
of Directors.

Two (2) Meetings was held during the financial year
ended 31 December 2009.

Compliance Statement

Having reviewed the corporate governance structure
and practices of the Group, the Board considers it has
complied with the Best Practices of the Code as well as
the Listing Requirement of the Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad for the ACE market.

Corporate_0062  01/06/2010  10:40 AM  Page 23
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Audit Committee
Report

COMPOSITION AND DESIGNATION OF AUDIT
COMMITTEE

Currently, the Audit Committee comprises the following
members:

Lee Teck Meng (Chairman) 
Independent Non-Executive Director

Dato’ Ng Bong Ching (Member)
Independent Non-Executive Director

Hee Chee Keong (Member)
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director 

TERMS OF REFERENCE OF THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE

Membership

1. Members of the Audit Committee shall be from
amongst its directors which fulfills the following
requirements:-

(a) the Audit Committee must be composed of no
fewer than three (3) members;

(b) all the Audit Committee members must be non-
executive directors, with a majority of them
being independent directors; and

(c) at least one (1) member of the Audit Committee:-

(i) must be a member of the Malaysian Institute
of Accountants; or

(ii) if he is not a member of the Malaysian
Institute of Accountants, he must have at
least three (3) years’ working experience
and:-

(aa) he must have passed the examinations
specified in Part I of the 1st Schedule of
the Accountants Act 1967; or

(bb) he must be a member of one of the
associations of accountants specified in
Part II of the 1st Schedule of the
Accountants Act 1967; or

(iii) fulfills such other requirements as prescribed
or approved by Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad.

2. No alternate director shall be appointed as a
member of the Audit Committee.

3. The members of the Audit Committee shall elect a
chairman from among their number who shall be an
independent director. 

4. If a member of the Audit Committee resigns, dies or
for any reason ceases to be a member which results
in the number being reduced below three (3), the
vacancy must be filled within three (3) months.

5. The term of office and performance of the Audit
Committee and each of its members shall 
be reviewed by the Board at least once every 
three (3) years.

Meetings

1. The Audit Committee shall meet at least four (4)
times in a year or a frequency to be decided by 
the Committee.

2. A quorum shall be two (2) members with a majority
of members present must be independent directors.

3. The Chairman of the Audit Committee shall, upon
the request of the external auditor, convene a
meeting to consider any matter the external auditor
believes should be brought to the attention of the
directors or shareholders.

4. Other directors and employees may attend any
particular Audit Committee meeting only at 
the Audit Committee’s invitation, specific to the
relevant meeting.

5. The Company Secretary shall be the Secretary of
the Committee. 

The principle objective of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board in discharging certain of its

statutory duties and responsibilities in relation to financial, accounting and reporting practices and

to ensure proper disclosure to the shareholders of the Group.

Corporate_0062  01/06/2010  10:40 AM  Page 24



25A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 0 9

TERMS OF REFERENCE OF THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE (cont’d)

Audit Committee Members

During the financial year ended 31 December 2009, the
Audit Committee met on 6 occasions. 

The meetings deliberated on a variety of matters.

Members of Audit Committee Attendance in 2009

Mr. Lee Teck Meng 6/6

Dato’ Ng Bong Ching 6/6

Mr. Hee Chee Keong 6/6

Functions

1. to review the following and report the same to the
board of directors of the Company:-

(a) with the external auditor, the audit plan;

(b) with the external auditor, his evaluation of the
system of internal controls;

(c) with the external auditor, his audit report;

(d) the assistance given by the employees of the
Company to the external auditor;

(e) the adequacy of the scope, functions,
competency and resources of the internal audit
functions and that it has the necessary authority
to carry out its work;

(f) the internal audit programme, processes, the
results of the internal audit programme,
processes or investigation undertaken and
whether or not appropriate action is taken on the
recommendations of the internal audit function;

(g) the quarterly results and year end financial
statements, prior to the approval by the board of
directors, focusing particularly on:-

(i) changes in or implementation of major
accounting policy changes;

(ii) significant and unusual events; and

(iii) compliance with accounting standards and
other legal requirements;

(h) any related party transaction and conflict of
interest situation that may arise within the
Company or group including any transaction,
procedure or course of conduct that raises
questions of management integrity;

(i) any letter of resignation from the external
auditors of the Company; and

(j) whether there is reason (supported by grounds)
to believe that the Company’s external auditor is
not suitable for re-appointment; and

2. to recommend the nomination of a person or
persons as external auditors.

3. to perform any other functions, responsibilities
and/or duties as may be imposed by Bursa
Malaysia Securities Berhad or any other relevant
authorities from time to time; and

4.   to perform such other functions as may be agreed to
by the Audit Committee and the board  of Directors.

Rights

The Audit Committee shall, in accordance with a
procedure to be determined by the Board of Directors
and at the cost of the Company:-

1. have authority to investigate any matter within its
terms of reference;

2. have the resources which are required to perform its
duties;

3. have full and unrestricted access to any information
pertaining to the Company;

4. have direct communication channels with the
external auditors and person(s) carrying out the
internal audit function or activity;

5. be able to obtain independent professional or other
advice; and

6. be able to convene meetings with the external
auditors, the internal auditors or both, excluding the
attendance of other directors and employees of the
Company, whenever deemed necessary.

Activities

The committee had carried out the following activities
during the six (6) meetings in discharging their duties
and responsibilities:

• reviewed the quarterly reports of the Group and
recommendation of the same to the Board for
approval and release of the Group’s result to Bursa
Malaysia Securities Berhad;

• reviewed the external auditors scope of work and
audit plan for the Group;
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TERMS OF REFERENCE OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE (cont’d)

Activities (cont’d)

• reviewed with external auditors on the results and issues arising from their audit of the financial year end statements
and their resolutions of such issues highlighted in their report to committee;

• reviewed internal audit findings and recommendations for improvement in the system of internal control;

• considered and recommended the external auditors for re-appointment;

• discussed the new accounting standards which will affect the company;

• reviewed and verified the allocations of options pursuant to the ESOS.

Internal Audit Function

The Group had formed an internal control department to carry out a review of the system of internal control and risk
assessment of the Group.

The person(s) carry out the Internal Audit Function will report directly to the Audit Committee and assist the Board in
monitoring the risks and reviewing the internal controls system to ensure sound internal control system are established
and continue to function effectively and satisfactorily with the Group.  

Employees’ Share Option Scheme (“ESOS”)

The Audit Committee has reviewed and verified that the allocations of options pursuant to the ESOS were in accordance
with the provision set out in the By-Laws of the ESOS.

No options were granted to Non-Executive Directors during the financial year ended 31 December 2009.
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1 SHARE BUY-BACKS

During the financial year, the Company did not enter
into any share buy-back transaction.

2 OPTIONS, WARRANTS OR CONVERTIBLE
SECURITIES

The Company’s Employees’ Share Option Scheme
was implemented on 27 July 2004 and the
exercised period of the options lapsed on 26 July
2009, details of which are set out in Note 20 to the
audited Financial Statements.

During the financial year 2006, the Company issued
78,971,566 warrants, none of the warrant was
exercised during the financial year 2009, details of
which are set out in Note 20 to the audited Financial
Statements.

Save as above, there were no other options,
warrants and convertible securities exercised by the
Company during the financial year.

3 AMERICAN DEPOSITORY RECEIPT (“ADR”)/
GLOBAL DEPOSITOR RECEIPT (“GDR”)
PROGRAMME

The Company did not sponsor any ADR or GDR
programme during the financial year.

4 SANCTIONS/PENALTIES

There were no material sanctions or penalties
imposed on the Company and its subsidiaries,
directors or management by the relevant regulatory
bodies during the financial year.

5 NON-AUDIT FEES

The amount of non-audit fees paid and payable to
the external auditors by the Group for the financial
year ended 31 December 2009 was RM1,000 
(Year of 2008 : Nil)

6 MATERIAL CONTRACTS INVOLVING DIRECTORS
AND SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

The Company and its subsidiary companies have
not entered into any material contract outside the
ordinary course of business, involving directors 

and substantial shareholders since the end of the
previous financial year ended 31 December 2008.

7 REVALUATION POLICY

The Company did not revalue any of its property,
plant and equipment during the financial year.

8 PROFIT GUARANTEE

There were no profit guarantees given by the
Company during the financial year.

9 VARIATION IN RESULTS

There were no significant variances noted between
the reported results and the unaudited results
announced.

10 PROFIT ESTIMATE, FORECAST OR PROJECTION

The Company did not make any release on the 
profit estimate, forecast or projection for the
financial year.

11 RECURRENT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(“RRPT”) OF REVENUE NATURE

During the financial year, there was no RRPT of
Revenue Nature.

12 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

In pursuit of the business objective, we believe 
that it’s important to strike a balance between
profitability and contributions to the society 
and environment responsibilities. Therefore, the
Company has contributed to NGOs and unfortunate
groups. The Company is also adopting eco-friendly
practices such as implementing Office Automation
Software to reduce the usage of paper to protect
the environment.

Besides, the Comapny has strive for the betterment
of our employees as the employees are recognised
as an important asset for the Group. Continuous
care on the welfare of employees is always
emphasised. Trainings will be constantly provided to
upgrade the employees’ skills and competency to
meet the changing requirements.

In compliance with the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements for the ACE Market,

the following information is provided:
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The Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad’s (“Bursa
Securities”) Revamped Listing Requirements for the ACE
Market require directors of public listed companies to
include a statement in their annual reports on the state of
their internal controls. The Bursa Securities’ Statement
on Internal Control : Guidance for Directors of Public
Listed Companies (“Guidance”) provides guidance for
compliance with these requirements. Set out below is the
Board’s Statement on Internal Control, which has been
prepared in accordance with the Guidance. 

The Board of Directors is pleased to present the
Statement on Internal Control of the Group comprising
Ariantec Global Berhad and the key elements of internal
control for the year ended 31 December 2009.

RESPONSIBILITY OF THE BOARD

The Board is ultimately responsible for the Group’s
system of internal control, which includes financial,
compliance and operational controls of the Group. The
Board also recognises its responsibility for reviewing the
adequacy and integrity of the system of internal 
controls to safeguard shareholders’ investments and the
Group’s assets.

However, it should be noted that the system of internal
controls is designed to manage rather than to eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives. As
such, it can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss. The
Group has in place an ongoing process to review the
effectiveness, adequacy and integrity of system of
internal control.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Board recognises that the management of principal
risks play an important and integral part of the Group’s
daily operations and that the identification and the
management of such risks will affect the achievement of
the Group’s corporate objectives. The Executive
Directors with assistance of the management are
continuously identifying, evaluating and managing
significant business risks that are affecting the day-to-
day operations of the Group.

The Audit Committee, on behalf of the Board, considers
the effectiveness of the operation of the internal control
procedures in the Group during the financial year. 

KEY ELEMENTS

The key elements of the Group’s internal control system
include the following:

• There is a clearly defined delegation of responsibility
to the Management and operating units to ensure
proper identification of accountabilities and
segregation of duties. 

• Policy guidelines, procedures and authority limits
are established for Executive Directors and
management within the Group in respect of day-to-
day operations, acquisitions and disposal of assets.

• There are standard operating policies and
procedures which are set out and communicated to
all levels of the organisation.

• Regular Board and Management Meeting are held
where information is provided to the Board and
Management covering financial performance 
and operations. 

INTERNAL AUDIT

The Group had set up an  internal control department to
carry out and  review of the system of internal control
and risk assessment of the Group.

The internal audit function has adopted a risk-based
approach in its audit work. The audit focused on areas
with high risk, which were identified in the risk
management framework, to ensure that the control were
functioning and where necessary, action plans were
developed to improve on controls to manage 
significant risks.

CONCLUSION

The Board is of the opinion that based on the current
level of activities, the Group’s system of internal control
is adequate, and the Management will continue to take
measures to strengthen the control environment.

INTRODUCTION

The Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance requires listed companies to maintain a sound

system of internal controls to safeguard shareholders’ investments and the Group’s assets.
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The directors hereby submit their report together with the audited financial statements of the Group and of the Company
for the financial year ended 31st December 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is principally involved in the research and development of software, system design, integration and
installation and provision of information technology services.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 13 to the financial statements.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of the principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries during
the financial year.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The results of the operations of the Group and of the Company for the financial year are as follows:

Group Company 
RM RM

Net loss for the financial year (6,010,508) (8,893,946)

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company (6,010,084) (8,893,946)
Minority interests (424) –

(6,010,508) (8,893,946)

DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company since the end of the previous financial year. The directors also
do not recommend the payment of any dividend in respect of the current financial year.

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS

There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year other than those as disclosed
in the financial statements.

ISSUE OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As approved by the shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 23rd November 2009, the authorised
share capital of the Company was increased from RM25,000,000 to RM70,000,000 during the financial year by the
creation of additional 450,000,000 ordinary shares of RM0.10 each. Also, the issued and paid-up share capital of the
Company was increased from RM18,625,303 to RM56,875,303 by the allotment of 382,500,000 new ordinary shares of
RM0.10 each at par for the purpose of acquisition of 3,957,196 ordinary shares of RM1 each in Ariantec Sdn. Bhd.,
representing 100% equity interest in the said company.

The new ordinary shares rank pari passu with the then existing ordinary shares of the Company.

The Company has not issued any debentures during the financial year.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company implemented an ESOS which came into effect on 27th July 2004. The ESOS is governed by the bye-laws
which were approved by the shareholders on 16th June 2004.

The salient features of the ESOS are as follows:

a) the total number of new shares which may be made available under the scheme shall not exceed fifteen per cent
(15%) of the total issued and paid-up share capital of the Company at any point of time during the existence of the
ESOS;

b) eligible persons are confirmed employees including full-time executive directors of the Group;
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SHARE OPTIONS (cont’d)

c) the aggregate number of new shares to be offered to selected employee in accordance with the ESOS shall be
determined at the discretion of the Option Committee. No option shall be granted for less than 100 shares;

d) the option price may be at a discount of not more than ten per cent (10%) from the five (5) days weighted average
market price of the underlying shares preceding the date of offer or at par value of the ordinary shares of the
Company, whichever is higher;

e) the ESOS shall be in force for a period of five (5) years and extendable to ten (10) years from the date of the first
offer; and

f) the options granted may be exercised up to twenty per cent (20%) of the total options granted per annum on a
straight line basis over the duration of the scheme.

The exercise period for the above options lapsed on 26th July 2009.

No options have been granted by the Company to any parties during the financial year to take up unissued shares of
the Company.

WARRANTS

In 2006, the Company issued 78,971,566 warrants 2005/2010 ("Warrants") pursuant to a renounceable rights issue on
the basis of three (3) Warrants for every four (4) ordinary shares of RM0.10 each held. The Warrants entitle the holders
to subscribe for new ordinary shares of RM0.10 each within five years from the date of issuance of the Warrants to the
expiry date (the period referred to as the "Exercise Period") and any warrants not exercised by that date shall thereafter
lapse and cease to be valid.

Some of the main features of the Warrants are:

(a) the Warrants were issued in registered form and are constituted and governed by a deed poll executed by 
the Company;

(b) each Warrant entitles the holder to subscribe for one (1) new ordinary share of RM0.10 each at an exercise price of
RM0.13 per share at any time during the Exercise Period;

(c) the Warrant holders are not entitled to any voting rights or to participate in any distribution and/or offer of further
securities in the Company until and unless such Warrant holders exercise their Warrants;

(d) the new shares to be alloted and issued pursuant to the exercise of the Warrants shall, rank pari passu in all
respects with the then existing shares, save and except that they shall not be entitled to any dividends, rights,
allotments and/or other distributions, the entitlement date of which is prior to the date of the allotment of the new
shares; and

(e) the exercise price of the Warrants and/or the number of Warrants may from time to time be adjusted in accordance
with the provisions in the deed poll.

DIRECTORS

The directors who served since the date of the last report are:

Datuk Low Kok Thai
Lee Teck Meng
Dato' Ng Bong Ching
Hee Chee Keong
Vincent Loy Ghee Yaw (appointed on 23.11.2009)
Chen Kong Kheng (appointed on 23.11.2009)
Dato' Low Kok Chuan (resigned on 23.11.2009)
Eng Kin Hoong (resigned on 23.11.2009)
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DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS

Since the end of the previous financial year, no director of the Company has received or become entitled to receive any
benefit (other than the benefit included in the aggregate amount of emoluments received or due and receivable by
directors as disclosed in the financial statements or the fixed salary of full-time employees of the Company) by reason
of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation with the director or with a firm of which the director is a
member, or with a company in which the director has a substantial financial interest.

Neither during nor at the end of the financial year, was the Company a party to any arrangements whose object is to
enable the directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

The shareholdings and options over shares in the Company of those who were directors at the end of the financial year,
as recorded in the Register of Directors' Shareholdings kept by the Company under Section 134 of the Companies Act,
1965, are as follows:

Number of ordinary shares of RM0.10 each 
Balance as of 

01.01.2009/ Balance as of
date of appointment Additions Disposals 31.12.2009

Shares in the Company

Registered in name of directors

Datuk Low Kok Thai 20,481,886 – – 20,481,886
Hee Chee Keong 167,000 – – 167,000
Vincent Loy Ghee Yaw – 142,921,125 (4,781,250) 138,139,875
Chen Kong Kheng – 142,921,125 (4,781,250) 138,139,875

Number of options over ordinary shares of RM0.10 each
Option Balance as of Balance as of

price 01.01.2009 Offered Lapsed 31.12.2009

Options over ordinary shares 
in the Company

Datuk Low Kok Thai RM0.12 237,500 – (237,500) –
RM0.30 621,000 – (621,000) –

Hee Chee Keong RM0.12 508,000 – (508,000) –

By virtue of the directors' interests in the shares of the Company, the directors are deemed to have an interest in the
shares of the subsidiaries as disclosed in Note 13 to the financial statements.

None of the other directors in office at the end of the financial year hold shares or have any beneficial interests in the
shares of the Company during the financial year.

STATUTORY INFORMATION ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

a) Before the income statements and balance sheets of the Group and of the Company were made out, the directors
took reasonable steps:

(i) to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the making of
allowance for doubtful debts and satisfied themselves that all known bad debts had been written off and that
adequate allowance had been made for doubtful debts; and

(ii) to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to realise in the ordinary course of business their values
as shown in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been written down to an amount
which they might be expected to realise.
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STATUTORY INFORMATION ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

b) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances:

(i) which would render the amount written off for bad debts or the amount of the allowance for doubtful debts in
the financial statements of the Group and of the Company inadequate to any substantial extent; or

(ii) which would render the values attributable to current assets in the financial statements of the Group and of
the Company misleading; or

(iii) which have arisen which render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the
Group and of the Company misleading or inappropriate.

c) At the date of this report, there does not exist:

(i) any charge on the assets of the Group and of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial
year which secures the liability of any other person; or

(ii) any contingent liability of the Group and of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial year
except for those disclosed in Note 29 to the financial statements.

d) No contingent liability or other liability of the Group and of the Company has become enforceable, or is likely to
become enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which in the opinion of
the directors, will or may substantially affect the ability of the Group and of the Company to meet their obligations
as and when they fall due.

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION

a) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt with in this report
or the financial statements of the Group and of the Company which would render any amount stated in the financial
statements misleading.

b) In the opinion of the directors,

(i) the results of the operations of the Group and of the Company during the financial year were not substantially
affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature other than the exceptional items as
disclosed in the financial statements; and

(ii) there has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report any item,
transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely to affect substantially the results of the operations
of the Group and of the Company for the financial year in which this report is made.

AUDITORS

The auditors, Messrs. Tan Chin Huat & Co, have indicated their willingness to continue in office.

Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the Directors,

HEE CHEE KEONG VINCENT LOY GHEE YAW
Director Director

Petaling Jaya
Date: 13th April 2010
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Statement by Directors

We, Hee Chee Keong and Vincent Loy Ghee Yaw, being two of the directors of Ariantec Global Berhad, do hereby state
that, in the opinion of the directors, the accompanying balance sheets and statements of income, cash flows and
changes in equity, together with the notes thereto, are drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 1965 and Financial Reporting Standards so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as
of 31st December 2009 and of the results and cash flows of the Company for the year then ended.

Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the Directors,

HEE CHEE KEONG VINCENT LOY GHEE YAW
Director Director

Petaling Jaya
Date: 13th April 2010

I, Hee Chee Keong, being the director primarily responsible for the financial management of Ariantec Gloabl Berhad, do
solemnly and sincerely declare that the accompanying balance sheets and statements of income, cash flows and
changes in equity, together with the notes thereto, are to the best of my knowledge and belief, correct and I make this
solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true, and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory
Declaration Act, 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared by the HEE CHEE KEONG
abovenamed Hee Chee Keong,
at Petaling Jaya on 13th April 2010

Before me:
Soong Foong Chee
No: B 158

COMMISSIONER FOR OATHS

Statutory Declaration
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REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the financial statements of Ariantec Global Berhad, which comprise the balance sheets as of 
31st December 2009 of the Group and of the Company, and the income statements, statements of changes in equity
and cash flow statements of the Group and of the Company for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes, as set out on pages 37 to 70.

Directors' Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia. This responsibility includes:
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, including the assessment of risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider
internal control relevant to the Company's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly drawn up in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards
and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of
the Company as of 31st December 2009 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended.
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REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report the following:

(a) In our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by the Company
and its subsidiaries of which we have acted as auditors have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions
of the Act.

(b) We have considered the financial statements and the auditors' reports of all the subsidiaries of which we have not
acted as auditors, which are indicated in Note 13 to the financial statements.

(c) We are satisfied that the financial statements of the subsidiaries that have been consolidated with the Company's
financial statements are in form and content appropriate and proper for the purposes of the preparation of the
financial statements of the Group and we have received satisfactory information and explainations required by us
for these purposes.

(d) The auditors' reports on the financial statements of the subsidiaries did not contain any qualification or any adverse
comment made under Section 174(3) of the Act.

OTHER MATTERS

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 174 of the Companies
Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person for the content of
this report.

TAN CHIN HUAT & CO TAN CHIN HUAT
Firm No. AF 1395 Approval No: 2037/06/10(J)
Chartered Accountants Proprietor

Date: 13th April 2010
Petaling Jaya
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Group Company 
2009 2008 2009 2008 

Note RM RM RM RM

Revenue 20,128,460 9,666,880 – 560,961

Other operating income 6 2,368,307 500,982 499,731 302,303
Changes in inventories of

finished goods (200,623) (5,517) (180,000) –
Purchases and other direct costs (15,255,488) (6,052,604) – (19,500)
Staff costs (1,087,300) (1,728,260) (127,070) (221,746)
Directors' remuneration 7 (345,675) (386,566) (46,252) (131,120)
Depreciation of property, plant

and equipment 11 (567,296) (589,523) (521,300) (536,268)
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 12 (14,059) (16,870) (14,059) (16,870)
Amortisation of intangible assets 14 (2,059,754) (2,056,199) (1,774,681) (1,598,010)
Other operating expenses 6 (8,466,523) (11,084,609) (6,551,299) (10,715,280)

Loss from operations (5,499,951) (11,752,286) (8,714,930) (12,375,530)

Finance costs 8 (298,180) (147,432) (159,195) (147,432)

Loss before tax (5,798,131) (11,899,718) (8,874,125) (12,522,962)

Income tax credit/(expense) 9 (212,377) 20,095 (19,821) (29,269)

Net loss for the financial year (6,010,508) (11,879,623) (8,893,946) (12,552,231)

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company (6,010,084) (11,377,900)
Minority interests (424) (501,723)

(6,010,508) (11,879,623)

Loss per share attributable to equity holders of the Company:

Basic (sen) 10 (2.67) (6.11)

Diluted (sen) 10 N/A N/A 
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Group Company 
2009 2008 2009 2008 

Note RM RM RM RM
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 11 613,286 3,780,155 2,392 3,677,930
Prepaid lease payments 12 – 1,455,014 – 1,455,014
Investments in subsidiaries 13 – – 39,390,807 2,164,493
Intangible assets 14 30,626,412 4,711,677 3,841,475 3,535,156
Deferred tax assets 15 – 117,982 – –

Total Non-Current assets 31,239,698 10,064,828 43,234,674 10,832,593

Current assets
Inventories 16 6,167,040 578,682 – 180,000
Trade receivables 17 35,864,290 8,220,353 850,335 5,839,506
Other receivables and prepaid expenses 17 10,561,574 4,836,941 7,570,990 5,843,437
Amount owing by directors 18 – 850,000 – –
Amount owing by subsidiaries 13 – – 448,902 585,293
Tax recoverable – 4,618 – –
Fixed deposits with licensed bank 19 7,046,313 – – –
Cash and bank balances 3,460,101 247,278 27,830 4,183

Total Current Assets 63,099,318 14,737,872 8,898,057 12,452,419

TOTAL ASSETS 94,339,016 24,802,700 52,132,731 23,285,012

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and Reserves
Share capital 20 56,875,303 18,625,303 56,875,303 18,625,303
Reserves 21 (6,760,176) (742,206) (8,863,960) 29,986

Equity attributable to equity holders 
of the Company 50,115,127 17,883,097 48,011,343 18,655,289

Minority interests 35,991 41,082 – –

Total Equity 50,151,118 17,924,179 48,011,343 18,655,289

Non-Current and Deferred Liabilities
Hire purchase creditors 22 250,378 – – –
Term loans 23 9,751,296 2,599,174 2,514,334 2,599,174
Deferred tax liabilities 15 32,627 – – –

Total Non-Current and Deferred Liabilities 10,034,301 2,599,174 2,514,334 2,599,174

Current Liabilities
Trade payables 24 13,075,942 427,637 – 1,625
Other payables and accrued expenses 24 1,830,497 2,581,720 132,941 974,148
Amount owing to subsidiaries 13 – – 1,223,875 781,456
Amount owing to directors 18 45,863 992,927 – –
Hire purchase creditors 22 74,821 – – –
Bank borrowings 25 18,204,207 216,665 176,660 216,665
Tax liabilities 922,267 60,398 73,578 56,655

Total Current Liabilities 34,153,597 4,279,347 1,607,054 2,030,549

Total Liabilities 44,187,898 6,878,521 4,121,388 4,629,723

Total Equity and Liabilities 94,339,016 24,802,700 52,132,731 23,285,012

38 ARIANTEC GLOBAL BERHAD (Formerly known as Global Soft (MSC) Bhd.) (533441-W)
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The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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<––––––– Non Distributable –––––––> Distributable
Retained

Share earnings/ 
Share Share Warrant option (Accumulated

capital premium reserve reserve loss) Total
COMPANY RM RM RM RM RM RM

Balance as of
1st January 2008 18,540,853 2,622,670 2,127,749 204,641 7,607,919 31,103,832

Net loss for the financial year 
representing total recognised 
income and expense for the 
financial year – – – – (12,552,231) (12,552,231)

Issuance of shares pursuant 
to ESOS 84,450 19,238 – – – 103,688

Employee's share option 
scheme:
- Options exercised – 43,502 – (43,502) – –

Balance as of
31st December 2008 18,625,303 2,685,410 2,127,749 161,139 (4,944,312) 18,655,289

<––––––– Non Distributable –––––––> 
Share 

Share Share Warrant option Accumulated 
capital premium reserve reserve loss Total

COMPANY RM RM RM RM RM RM

Balance as of
1st January 2009 18,625,303 2,685,410 2,127,749 161,139 (4,944,312) 18,655,289

Net loss for the financial year 
representing total recognised 
income and expense for the 
financial year – – – – (8,893,946) (8,893,946)

Issuance of shares 38,250,000 – – – – 38,250,000

Employee's share option 
scheme:
- Options exercised – – – (161,139) 161,139 –

Balance as of 
31st December 2009 56,875,303 2,685,410 2,127,749 – (13,677,119) 48,011,343
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Group Company 
2009 2008 2009 2008 

RM RM RM RM

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax (5,798,131) (11,899,718) (8,874,125) (12,522,962)
Adjustments for:

Exceptional items:
Allowance for doubtful debts 2,533,735 7,175,862 1,635,851 4,853,311
Impairment loss – – 1,019,019 4,900,464
Development costs written off 2,335,351 – 2,335,351 –
Amortisation of intangible assets 2,059,754 2,056,199 1,774,681 1,598,010
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 14,059 16,870 14,059 16,870
Bad debts written off 190,817 – – –
Intangible assets written off – 374,998 – –
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 567,296 589,523 521,300 536,268
Finance costs 298,180 147,432 159,195 147,432
Interest income (9,750) (2,570) – –
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of property, plant and 

equipment (310,931) (5,214) (310,718) 329
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of investment in subsidiaries (1,423,393) – 4,660 –
Waiver of amount owing to subsidiaries – – – 170,303
Other payables written off (15,173) – (15,173) –
Property, plant and equipment written off 811,665 56,960 807,519 –

Operating profit/(loss) before working capital
changes 1,253,479 (1,489,658) (928,381) (299,975)

Changes in working capital:
Decrease in inventories 1,798,448 193,222 180,000 –
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables (6,533,151) (294,993) 3,353,320 1,201,265
Increase in other receivables and prepaid expenses (4,466,017) (1,185,795) (1,727,553) (2,524,779)
(Increase)/Decrease in amount owing by directors 850,000 (799,839) – –
Decrease in amount owing by subsidiaries – – 136,391 2,569,631
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables 6,167,757 279,930 (1,625) 1,625
Increase/(Decrease) in other payables and

accrued expenses 2,256,579 1,884,623 (826,034) 879,917
Increase/(Decrease) in amount owing to subsidiaries – – 442,419 (1,551,708)
Increase in amount owing to directors 170,352 992,927 – –

Cash Generated From/(Used In) Operations 1,497,447 (419,583) 628,537 275,976
Tax refunded/(paid) 47,845 (11,802) (2,898) (11,802)
Interest received 9,750 2,570 – –
Interest paid (298,180) (147,432) (159,195) (147,432)

Net Cash From/(Used In) Operating Activities 1,256,862 (576,247) 466,444 116,742

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Development expenditure and intellectual

property costs incurred (4,416,351) (957,692) (4,416,351) (957,692)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (306,897) (46,929) (301,608) (37,444)
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed 

off (Note 13) (76,083) – – –
Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash 

acquired (Note 13) 1,610,084 – 7 –
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant

and equipment 4,400,000 7,189 4,400,000 1,200

Net Cash From/(Used In) Investing Activities (1,210,753) (997,432) (317,952) (993,936)
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Group Company 
2009 2008 2009 2008 

RM RM RM RM

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issuance of shares – 103,688 – 103,688
Decrease in bank borrowings (102,097) – – –
Increase in fixed deposits pledged (8,219) – – –
Repayment of term loan and hire purchase 

obligations (124,845) (109,920) (124,845) (109,920)

Net Cash Used In Financing Activities (235,161) (6,232) (124,845) (6,232)

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS 2,232,454 (1,579,911) 23,647 (883,426)

Effect of changes in exchange rates 6,284 16,428 – –

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
BROUGHT FORWARD 247,278 1,810,761 4,183 887,609

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CARRIED FORWARD (Note 26) 2,486,016 247,278 27,830 4,183

Note:
During the financial year, the Company issued 382,500,000 new ordinary shares of RM0.10 each at par for the purpose
of acquisition of 3,957,196 ordinary shares of RM1 each in Ariantec Sdn. Bhd., representing 100% equity interest in the
said company.
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1) GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia, and is listed on the
ACE Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

The Company is principally involved in the research and development of software, system design, integration and
installation and provision of information technology services. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out
in Note 13 to the financial statements. There have been no significant changes in the nature of the principal activities
of the Company and its subsidiaries during the financial year.

The registered office of the Company is located at Lot 10, The Highway Centre, Jalan 51/205, 46050 Petaling Jaya,
Selangor Darul Ehsan.

The principal place of business of the Company is located at No: 37, Jalan PJS 11/28B, Sunway Metro, 
Bandar Sunway, 46150 Petaling Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan.

The financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM).

The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been authorised by the Board of Directors for
issuance on 13th April 2010.

2) BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act, 1965 and Financial Reporting Standards in Malaysia.

Standards and Interpretations in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not applied the new and revised Financial Reporting Standards ("FRSs") and the Issues Committee
("IC") Interpretations which have been issued as of balance sheet date by the Malaysian Accounting Standards
Board ("MASB") as described hereunder:

Effective for financial period
beginning on or after

FRS 1 and FRS 127 Amendments to FRS 1, First-time Adoption of Financial 1st January 2010
Reporting Standards and FRS 127, Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements: Cost of an Investment
in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate

FRS 2 Amendments to FRS 2, Share-based Payment: 1st January 2010
Vesting Conditions and Cancellations

FRS 4 Insurance Contracts 1st January 2010
FRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures 1st January 2010

Amendments to FRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures
FRS 8 Operating Segments 1st July 2009
FRS 101 Presentation of Financial Statements (revised 2009) 1st January 2010
FRS 123 Borrowing Costs 1st January 2010
FRS 132 Amendments to FRS 132, Financial Instruments: 1st January 2010

Presentation - Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation

FRS 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement 1st January 2010
Amendments to FRS 139, Financial Instruments:

Recognition and Measurement 
IC Interpretation 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives 1st January 2010

Amendment to IC Interpretation 9, Reassessment of 
Embedded Derivatives

IC Interpretation 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment 1st January 2010
IC Interpretation 11 FRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share Transactions 1st January 2010
IC Interpretation 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes 1st January 2010
IC Interpretation 14 FRS 119 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum 1st January 2010

Funding Requirements and their Interaction

44 ARIANTEC GLOBAL BERHAD (Formerly known as Global Soft (MSC) Bhd.) (533441-W)
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2) BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

Standards and Interpretations in issue but not yet effective (cont’d)

The Group will adopt the above FRSs, amendments and interpretations when they become effective and they are
not expected to have any significant impact on the financial statements of the Group upon their initial application.

The impact of applying FRS 7 and FRS 139 on the financial statements upon their first adoption is not disclosed by
virtue of the exemptions provided in the respective FRSs.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Financial Reporting Standards requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and the
reported results during the reported period. It also requires directors to exercise their judgement in the process of
applying the Group's accounting policies. Although these estimates and judgement are based on the director's best
knowledge of current events and actions, actual results may differ.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in Note 5 to the financial statements.

3) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The operations of the Group are subject to a variety of financial risks, including market risk, foreign currency
exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and cash flow risk. The Group has formulated a financial
risk management framework whose principal objective is to minimise the Group's exposure to risks and/or costs
associated with the financing, investing and operating activities of the Group.

Market risk

The Group has in place policies to manage its competitive risks from its competitors in providing better services.
The Group regularly takes part in various research to develop better and more attractive packages.

Foreign currency exchange risk

The Group's foreign currency exposure arise mainly from purchases in foreign currency. Management believes that
the Group's foreign currency risk is minimal and accordingly, no hedging is performed.

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk mainly from trade receivables. The Group extends credit to its customers based
upon careful evaluation of the customer's financial condition and credit history.

Liquidity risk

The Group practises prudent liquidity risk management to minimise the mismatch of financial assets and liabilities
and to maintain sufficient funds for contingent funding requirement of working capital.

Interest rate risk

The Group enters into various interest rate risk management transactions for the purpose of reducing net interest
costs and to achieve interest rates within predictable, desired ranges.

Cash flow risk

The Group reviews its cash flow position regularly to manage its exposure to fluctuations in future cash flows
associated with its monetary financial instruments.

Fair values

It is not practical to estimate the fair values of the amount owing by/(to) subsidiaries due principally to lack of
repayment terms entered into by the parties involved and without incurring excessive costs. However, the carrying
amounts recorded at the balance sheet date are anticipated not to be significantly different from the values that
would eventually be realisable.
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3) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (cont’d)

Fair values (cont’d)

The fair values of the other financial assets and financial liabilities reported in the balance sheets as of 
31st December 2009 approximate the carrying amounts of these assets and liabilities because of the immediate or
short-term maturity of these financial instruments except for the following:

Group Company 
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair 
amount value amount value

RM RM RM RM

Financial Liabilities
Hire purchase obligations (Note 22) 325,199 308,154 – –
Term loans (Note 23) 19,224,956 17,936,973 2,690,994 1,902,806

The fair value of the hire purchase obligations and term loans are estimated by discounting the expected future cash
flows using the current interest rate for liabilities with similar risk profiles.

4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

b) Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow
to the enterprise and the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.

Revenue from goods sold is recognised upon delivery of goods and when the risks and rewards of ownership have
passed. Revenue represents the invoiced value of goods sold and services rendered net of discounts and returns.

c) Foreign Currency Conversion

(i) Functional and Presentation Currency

The individual financial statements of each entity in the Group are measured using the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates ("the functional currency"). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM), which is also the Company's functional currency.

(ii) Foreign Currency Transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income statements.

(iii) Foreign Operations

For the purpose of consolidation, the financial statements of the foreign incorporated subsidiaries have
been translated into Ringgit Malaysia as follows:

Assets and liabilities - at closing rate
Issued capital - at historical rate
Revenue and expenses - at average rate

All resulting exchange differences are taken to the exchange fluctuation reserve within equity.

d) Income Tax

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax is the expected
amount of income taxes payable in respect of the taxable profit for the year and is measured using the tax
rates that have been enacted at the balance sheet date.
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4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

d) Income Tax (cont’d)

Deferred tax is provided for, using the liability method, on temporary differences at the balance sheet date
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. In
principle, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax is recognised as income or an expense and included in the profit or loss for the period, except when
it arises from a transaction which is recognised directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised
directly in equity, or when it arises from a business combination that is an acquisition, in which case the deferred
tax is included in the resulting goodwill or the amount of any excess of the acquirer's interest in the net fair value
of the acquiree's identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of the combination.

e) Property, Plant and Equipment

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Subsequent costs are included in the
asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the income statements during the financial year in which they are incurred.

Subsequent to recognition, property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation of assets is calculated to write off the cost of the assets on a straight-line basis over the expected
useful lives of the assets concerned. The annual depreciation rates used are as follows:

%
Long leasehold building Over the remaining period of 88 years
Computer equipment 20 - 25
Office equipment 20 - 25
Furniture and fittings 10 - 25
Renovation 10 - 20
Motor vehicles 15 - 20

At each balance sheet date, the Group assesses whether there is any indication of impairment. If such
indications exist, an analysis is performed to assess whether the carrying amount of the asset is fully
recoverable. A write down is made if the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount. See accounting
policy Note 4 m) on impairment of assets.

Gain or loss arising from the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the estimated net
disposal proceed and the carrying amount of the asset, and is recognised in the income statements.

f) Leases and Prepaid Land Lease Payment

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased
item, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the income
statements on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leasehold land that normally has an indefinite economic life and title is not expected to pass to the lessee by
the end of the lease term is treated as an operating lease. The payment made on entering into or acquiring a
leasehold land is accounted for as prepaid lease payments that are amortised over the lease term in
accordance with the pattern of benefits provided.

g) Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries
made up to the end of the financial year. Subsidiaries are those entities in which the Group has power to
exercise control over the financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from their activities.
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4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

g) Basis of Consolidation (cont’d)

Subsidiaries are consolidated using the purchase method of accounting. Under the purchase method of
accounting, subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and
are no longer consolidated from the date that control ceases. The cost of acquisition is measured as fair value
of the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus
costs directly attributable to the acquisition.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition dates, irrespective of the extent of any minority interest.
Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities represents goodwill. Any excess of the Group's interest in the net fair value
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilites over the cost of acquisition is recognised
immediately in the income statements.

Minority interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets in subsidiaries not held by the Group.
It is measured at the minorities' share of the fair value of the subsidiaries' identifiable assets and liabilities at
the acquisition date and the minorities' share of changes in the subsidiaries' equity since then.

All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated on consolidation.

h) Investments

Investments in subsidiaries are shown at cost. Where there is an indication of impairment exists, the carrying
amount of the investment is assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amount. The policy for
recognition and measurement of impairment losses is in accordance with Note 4 m).

i) Intangible Assets

(i) Goodwill

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is initially measured at cost being the excess of the cost of
business combination over the Group's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of a subsidiary. Following the initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is not subject to amortisation but it is reviewed for impairment
annually or more frequently whenever there is an indication that the carrying value may be impaired. The
policy for the recognition and measurement of impairment losses is in accordance with Note 4 m). Gains
and lossess on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

(ii) Research and Development Costs

All research costs are recognised in the income statements as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is capitalised and deferred only when the
Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will
generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete the project and the ability to
measure reliably the expenditure during the development. Product development expenditures which do
not meet these criteria are expensed when incurred.

Development costs, considered to have finite useful lives, are stated at cost less any impairment losses
and are amortised using the straight-line basis over the commercial lives of the underlying products.
Impairment is assessed whenever there is an indication of impairment and the amortisation period and
method are also reviewed at least at each balance sheet date.

(iii) Other Intangible Assets

Intangible assets, which comprise intellectual property and licence rights, are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The useful lives of the intangible assets are assessed to be finite or indefinite. Intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised but are tested for impairment annually or more
frequently if the events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired either
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The useful lives of intangible assets with indefinite lives are
also reviewed annually to determine whether the useful life assessment continues to be supportable.
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4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

j) Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (determined principally on the first-in, first-out method) and net
realisable value. Cost consists of purchases and other direct costs incurred in bringing the inventories to its
present condition and location.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the costs of
completion and selling expenses.

k) Financial Instruments

Financial instruments are recognised in the balance sheets when the Group has become a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial instruments are classified as liabilities or equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
agreement. Interest, dividends and gains and losses relating to a financial instrument classified as a liability,
are reported as expense or income. Distributions to holders of financial instruments classified as equity are
charged directly to equity. Financial instruments are offset when the Group has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends to settle either on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(i) Receivables

Receivables are stated at nominal values as reduced by the appropriate allowance for estimated
irrecoverable amounts. Allowance for doubtful debts is made based on estimates of possible losses
which may arise from non-collection of certain receivable accounts.

(ii) Payables

Payables are stated at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the future for 
services received.

(iii) Equity Instruments

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Dividends are recognised in equity in the year in which they 
are declared.

l) Hire Purchase Arrangement

Assets held under hire purchase are treated as if they had been purchased at cost at the commencement of the
hire purchase agreements. These costs are included under property, plant and equipment and depreciation is
provided accordingly. The corresponding obligations under hire purchase are included under liabilities. The charges
of instalments payable are charged to the income statements over the period of the hire purchase agreements.

m) Impairment of Assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there
is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, impairment is measured by comparing the
carrying values of the assets with their recoverable amounts. Recoverable amount is the higher of net selling
price and value in use, which is measured by reference to discounted future cash flows.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense in the income statements immediately, unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount. Any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease to
the extent of any unutilised previously recognised revaluation surplus for the same asset.

n) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition and construction of property, plant and equipment
which require a period of time to get them ready for their intended use is capitalised and included as part of
the cost of the related assets, until such time the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the income statements in the year in which they are incurred.

o) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal and constructive obligation as a result of past
events, when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation, and when a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

49A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 0 9

Financial_0062  01/06/2010  10:41 AM  Page 49



4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

p) Employee Benefits

(i) Short term benefits

Wages, salaries, bonuses and social security contributions are recognised as an expense in the year in
which associated services are rendered by employees of the Group. Short term accumulating
compensated absences such as paid annual leave are recognised when services are rendered by
employees that increase their entitlement to future compensated absences, and short term 
non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick leave are recognised when the absences occur.

(ii) Defined contributions plans

As required by law, companies in Malaysia make contributions to the state pension scheme, Employees
Provident Fund ("EPF"). Such contributions are recognised as an expense in the income statements 
as incurred.

(iii) Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation plan. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as an expense in the income
statements with a corresponding increase in the share option reserve over the vesting period. The total
amount to be recognised over the vesting period is determined by reference to the fair value of the options
granted on the date of the grant. Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the
number of options that are expected to become exercisable on the vesting date. At each balance sheet date,
the Group revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to become exercisable on the
vesting date and recognises the impact of the revision of the estimates in the income statements, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve over the remaining vesting period. The equity amount
is recognised in the share option reserve until the option is exercised, upon which it will be transferred to
share premium, or until the option expires, upon which it will be transferred directly to retained earnings.

q) Warrants

Rights issue of Warrants are recognised and credited to warrant reserve based on the proceeds received, net
of transaction cost. Upon exercise of Warrants, the amount credited to share capital and share premium, is the
aggregate of the amounts of proceeds from share issue and warrant reserve. The warrant reserve in relation
to the unexercised Warrants at the expiry of the warrant period will be transferred to retained earnings.

r) Cash Flow Statements

The Group and the Company adopt the indirect method in the preparation of the cash flow statements.

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less from the date
of acquisition and are readily convertible to cash with insignificant risks of changes in value.

s) Segment Reporting

Segment reporting is presented for enhanced assessment of the Group's risks and returns. Business
segments provide products or services that are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of
other business segments. Geographical segments provide products or services within a particular economic
environment that is subject to risks and returns that are different from those components operating in other
economic environments. 

Segment revenue, expense, assets and liabilities are those amounts resulting from the operating activities of
a segment that are directly attributable to the segment and the relevant portion that can be allocated on a
reasonable basis to the segment.

5) CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

Critical judgements in applying the Group's and the Company's accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group's and the Company's accounting policies, which are described in Note 4
above, management is of the opinion that there are no instances of application of judgement which are expected
to have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.
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5) CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (cont’d)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Management believes that there are no key assumptions made concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year (apart from those involving estimations which
are dealt with below).

(i) Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill has impaired at least on an annual basis. The recoverable amounts of the
cash-generating units ("CGU") are determined based on the value-in-use method. Estimating a value-in-use amount
requires management to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the CGU and also to choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

(ii) Allowance for Inventories

Reviews are made periodically by management on damaged, obsolete and slow-moving inventories. These reviews
require judgement and estimates. Possible changes in these estimates could result in revisions to the valuation 
of inventories.

(iii) Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

The policy of allowance for bad and doubtful debts of the Group is based on the evaluation of the ability to collect
and ageing analysis of accounts and on management's judgement. A considerable amount of judgement is required
in assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the current creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each customer. If the financial conditions of the customers of the Group were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments, allowance for bad and doubtful debts may be required.

6) OTHER OPERATING INCOME/(EXPENSES)
Other operating income/(expenses) is stated after charging:

Group Company 
2009 2008 2009 2008 

RM RM RM RM

Exceptional items:
Allowance for doubtful debts 2,533,735 7,175,862 1,635,851 4,853,311
Impairment loss – – 1,019,019 4,900,464
Development costs written off 2,335,351 – 2,335,351 –

Auditors' remuneration:
- current year 34,343 42,367 10,000 12,000
- overprovision in prior year – (100) – –

Bad debts written off 190,817 – – –
Equipment rental 1,320 1,700 1,320 1,700
Intangible assets written off – 374,998 – –
Loss on disposal of investment in subsidiaries – – 4,660 –
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment – – – 329
Operating lease rental paid in respect of rented 

premises 111,594 281,945 30,921 92,959
Property, plant and equipment written off 811,665 56,960 807,519 –
Royalty payable – 261,525 – –

And crediting:
Interest received 9,750 2,570 – –
Gain on foreign exchange 198,740 107,810 – –
Gain on disposal of investment in subsidiaries 1,423,393 – – –
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 310,931 5,214 310,718 –
Other payables written off 15,173 – 15,173 –
Rental income 172,950 132,000 168,000 132,000
Waiver of amount owing to subsidiaries – – – 170,303
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7) DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION
Group Company 

2009 2008 2009 2008 
RM RM RM RM

Directors of the Company
Executive directors:

Other emoluments 200,295 328,011 – 107,520
Fees – 3,000 – 3,000

Non-executive directors:
Other emoluments 110,380 – 11,252 –
Fees 35,000 20,600 35,000 20,600

Other Directors
Other emoluments – 30,955 – –
Fees – 4,000 – –

345,675 386,566 46,252 131,120

The number of directors of the Company whose total remuneration during the financial year fell within the following
bands is analysed below:

Number of directors
2009 2008

Executive directors:

RM1 - RM50,000 2 –
RM50,001 - RM100,000 2 1
RM100,001 - RM150,000 – 1
RM150,001 - RM200,000 – 1

Non-executive directors:

RM1 - RM50,000 2 3
RM50,001 - RM100,000 – –
RM100,001 - RM150,000 1 –

8) FINANCE COSTS
Group Company 

2009 2008 2009 2008 
RM RM RM RM

Interest on:
Hire purchase 12,504 – – –
Letter of credit 28,183 – – –
Term loan 257,493 147,432 159,195 147,432

298,180 147,432 159,195 147,432
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9) INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)
Group Company 

2009 2008 2009 2008 
RM RM RM RM

Estimated income tax payable:
Taxation based on rental and interest income 83,947 29,269 42,000 29,269
Overprovision in prior year (22,179) – (22,179) –

61,768 29,269 19,821 29,269
Deferred tax in respect of:

Tax assets (Note15) 119,132 (45,770) – –
Tax liabilities (Note 15) 31,477 (3,594) – –

150,609 (49,364) – –

212,377 (20,095) 19,821 29,269

The Company has been awarded Multimedia Super Corridor status by the Government of Malaysia. Accordingly,
there is no tax charge for business income for the period under review as the Company has been granted pioneer
status under the Promotion of Investments (Amendment) Act, 1997.

A numerical reconciliation between the income tax expense/(credit) and the product of accounting loss multiplied
by the applicable statutory income tax rate is as follows:

Group Company 
2009 2008 2009 2008 

RM RM RM RM

Loss before tax (5,798,131) (11,899,718) (8,874,125) (12,522,962)

Tax at the applicable statutory income 
tax rate of 26%/25%/20% (2,047,991) (4,094,554) (2,218,531) (3,255,970)

Tax effects in respect of:
Expenses that are not deductible for 

tax purposes 1,642,135 1,960,549 1,566,662 1,720,066
Expenses capitalised (1,104,088) (249,000) (1,104,088) (249,000)
Income not subject to tax (595,541) 453,597 – –
Deferred tax assets not recognised 2,297,449 1,870,616 1,797,957 1,814,173
Difference tax rate in other countries (74,481) – – –
Reversal of previous year's deferred tax assets 117,073 38,697 – –

Overprovision in prior year (22,179) – (22,179) –

Current year tax expense/(credit) 212,377 (20,095) 19,821 29,269

10) LOSS PER ORDINARY SHARE

Basic

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the financial year as follows:

Group
2009 2008 

RM RM

Loss attributable to equity holders of the Company (6,010,084) (11,377,900)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 225,027,006 186,216,115

Basic loss per share (sen) (2.67) (6.11)

Diluted

The effect on the loss per ordinary share arising from the assumed conversion of the Company's ESOS and
Warrants is anti-dilutive.
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11) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Long
leasehold Computer Office Furniture Motor

GROUP building equipment equipment and fittings Renovation  vehicles Total
2009 RM RM RM RM RM RM RM

Cost

Balance as of 
1st January 2009 2,444,551 1,288,634 110,859 93,220 1,713,662 – 5,650,926

Additions 300,000 1,608 5,289 – – – 306,897
Arising from acquisition

of subsidiary – – 231,133 96,944 52,238 520,000 900,315
Disposals (2,744,551) (17,879) (5,922) – – – (2,768,352)
Written off – (1,124,691) (85,487) (89,195) (1,713,662) – (3,013,035)
Arising from disposal 

of subsidiaries – (113,545) (34,946) (4,025) – – (152,516)
Exchange differences – (1,775) (275) – – – (2,050)

Balance as of 
31st December 2009 – 32,352 220,651 96,944 52,238 520,000 922,185

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as of
1st January 2009 73,313 830,945 78,000 81,168 807,345 – 1,870,771

Charge for the financial 
year 22,911 173,367 12,720 6,126 343,505 8,667 567,296

Arising from acquisition
of subsidiary – – 105,371 23,478 36,029 111,833 276,711

Disposals (96,224) (19,818) (4,196) – – – (120,238)
Written off – (893,138) (72,619) (85,536) (1,150,077) – (2,201,370)
Arising from disposal 

of subsidiaries – (72,160) (10,120) (951) – – (83,231)
Exchange differences – (917) (123) – – – (1,040)

Balance as of 
31st December 2009 – 18,279 109,033 24,285 36,802 120,500 308,899

Net book value as of
31st December 2009 – 14,073 111,618 72,659 15,436 399,500 613,286
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11) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (cont’d)

Long
leasehold Computer Office Furniture Motor

GROUP building equipment equipment and fittings Renovation  vehicles Total
2008 RM RM RM RM RM RM RM

Cost
Balance as of

1st January 2008 2,444,551 1,277,688 117,401 95,535 1,741,269 – 5,676,444
Additions – 37,157 7,130 2,642 – – 46,929
Disposals – (1,699) (669) – – – (2,368)
Written off – (39,219) (15,535) (4,957) (27,607) – (87,318)
Exchange differences – 14,707 2,532 – – – 17,239

Balance as of
31st December 2008 2,444,551 1,288,634 110,859 93,220 1,713,662 – 5,650,926

Accumulated depreciation
Balance as of

1st January 2008 45,821 651,839 67,520 74,259 466,941 – 1,306,380
Charge for the 

financial year 27,492 191,008 16,344 8,999 345,680 – 589,523
Disposals – (170) (223) – – – (393)
Written off – (16,519) (6,473) (2,090) (5,276) – (30,358)
Exchange differences – 4,787 832 – – – 5,619

Balance as of
31st December 2008 73,313 830,945 78,000 81,168 807,345 – 1,870,771

Net book value as of
31st December 2008 2,371,238 457,689 32,859 12,052 906,317 – 3,780,155
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11) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (cont’d)

Long
leasehold Computer Office Furniture

COMPANY building equipment equipment and fittings Renovation Total
2009 RM RM RM RM RM RM

Cost
Balance as of

1st January 2009 2,444,551 1,119,903 82,776 89,195 1,713,662 5,450,087
Additions 300,000 1,608 – – – 301,608
Disposals (2,744,551) – – – – (2,744,551)
Written off – (1,119,037) (82,776) (89,195) (1,713,662) (3,004,670)

Balance as of
31st December 2009 – 2,474 – – – 2,474

Accumulated depreciation
Balance as of

1st January 2009 73,313 745,512 65,770 80,217 807,345 1,772,157
Charge for the financial year 22,911 145,071 5,267 5,319 342,732 521,300
Disposals (96,224) – – – – (96,224)
Written off – (890,501) (71,037) (85,536) (1,150,077) (2,197,151)
Balance as of

31st December 2009 – 82 – – – 82

Net book value as of
31st December 2009 – 2,392 – – – 2,392

COMPANY
2008

Cost
Balance as of

1st January 2008 2,444,551 1,091,288 75,646 89,195 1,713,662 5,414,342
Additions – 30,314 7,130 – – 37,444
Disposals – (1,699) – – – (1,699)

Balance as of
31st December 2008 2,444,551 1,119,903 82,776 89,195 1,713,662 5,450,087

Accumulated depreciation
Balance as of

1st January 2008 45,821 595,294 57,322 73,009 464,613 1,236,059
Charge for the

financial year 27,492 150,388 8,448 7,208 342,732 536,268
Disposals – (170) – – – (170)
Balance as of

31st December 2008 73,313 745,512 65,770 80,217 807,345 1,772,157

Net book value as of
31st December 2008 2,371,238 374,391 17,006 8,978 906,317 3,677,930

Net book value as of year end for property, plant and equipment acquired under hire purchase for the Group in 2009
was RM399,500.
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12) PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS
Group and Company
2009 2008 

RM RM

Balance as of beginning of financial year 1,500,000 1,500,000
Disposal (1,500,000) –

Balance as of end of financial year – 1,500,000

Less:
Accumulated amortisation:
Balance as of beginning of financial year 44,986 28,116
Charge for the financial year 14,059 16,870
Disposal (59,045) –

– 44,986

Net carrying amount – 1,455,014

13) INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
Company

2009 2008 
RM RM

Unquoted shares - At cost 44,214,955 7,139,956
Less: Accumulated impairment losses (4,824,148) (4,975,463)

39,390,807 2,164,493

The amount owing by/(to) subsidiaries comprise mainly trade transactions and inter-company advances which are
unsecured, interest-free and bear no fixed terms of repayment.

The details of the subsidiaries are as follows:

Direct Equity Interest
Place of 2009 2008

Name of Company Incorporation % % Principal Activities

Direct Subsidiaries

Global Soft Distribution Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100 100 As a marketing agent for the
Company's products and services.

Global Soft Enterprise Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100 100 As a marketing agent for the
Company's products and services.

Global Soft Integrators Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100 100 As a marketing agent for the
Company's products and services.

Global Soft (Northern) Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100 100 As a marketing agent for the
Company's products and services.
Temporarily inactive since 2006.

Ariantec Global (HK) Limited Hong Kong 100 100 Trading in software design,
(Formerly known as computer software and hardware.
Global Soft International (HK) 
Limited)*
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13) INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (cont’d)

The details of the subsidiaries are as follows: (cont’d)

Direct Equity Interest
Place of 2009 2008

Name of Company Incorporation % % Principal Activities

Direct Subsidiaries (cont’d)

Global Soft International Sdn. Bhd Malaysia 60 60 Research and development of
software, system design, 
integration and installation and
provision of information technology
services. Temporarily inactive
during the financial year.

Global Green Energy Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100 100 Dormant
(Formerly known as
Global Soft Trading Sdn. Bhd.)

Global Soft Training Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100 100 Dormant

Global Soft (Pg) Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 75 75 Temporarily inactive

Ariantec Sdn. Bhd. * Malaysia 100 – Provision of turnkey solutions on
network infrastructure and 
security management.

Global Soft Consulting Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia – 100 As a marketing agent for the
Company's products and services.

CIS IT Solutions Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia – 50 and Trading in software programmes
2 shares and providing installation, training,

maintenance and related services.

Global Soft Marketing Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia – 100 As a marketing agent for the
Company's products and services.

Indirect Subsidiaries

Spammerspy Technologies Malaysia 100 – Consultation, supply and
International Sdn. Bhd.* commissioning of information

technologies.

Global Soft People's – 100 Software and system design,
(Suzhou) Co. Ltd.* Republic of development and trading.

China

* Audited by firm of auditors other than auditors of the Company

Notes to the Financial Statements (cont’d)
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13) INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (cont’d)

During the financial year, the Group acquired 100% equity interest in Ariantec Sdn. Bhd., a company incorporated in
Malaysia. The effects of the acquisition on the financial results of the Group during the financial year are as follows:

Group
2009

RM

Revenue 12,251,839
Cost of sales (8,794,246)
Other operating income 122,190
Other operating expenses (900,440)

Profit before tax 2,679,343
Income tax expense (74,298)

Decrease in Group's loss attributable to shareholders 2,605,045

The effect of the acquisition on the financial position of the Group as of the end of the financial year is as follows:

Group
2009

RM

Net assets acquired:
Property, plant and equipment 623,604
Goodwill 281,103
Inventories 7,465,082
Trade receivables 25,127,996
Other receivables and prepaid expenses 3,063,729
Fixed deposits with licensed bank 7,038,094
Cash and bank balances 1,610,084
Trade payables (6,763,800)
Other payables and accrued expenses (1,154,573)
Bank borrowings (24,717,721)
Amount owing to directors (23,863)
Tax liabilities (774,624)
Deferred tax liabilities (28,945)
Goodwill on consolidation 26,503,834

38,250,000
Total consideration satisfied by issuance of shares (38,250,000)

Total cash consideration –
Less: Cash and bank balances (1,610,084)

Cash flow on acquisition, net of cash and cash equivalents acquired (1,610,084)

During the financial year, the Group disposed off the following subsidiaries:

- Global Soft Marketing Sdn. Bhd. for a cash consideration of RM2;
- Global Soft Consulting Sdn. Bhd. for a cash consideration of RM3;
- CIS IT Solutions Sdn. Bhd. for a cash consideration of RM2; and
- Global Soft (Suzhou) Co. Ltd, an indirect subsidiary for a cash consideration of RM234,647
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13) INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (cont’d)

The effects of the disposal of these subsidiaries on the financial results of the Group during the financial year are 
as follows:

Group
2009

RM

Revenue 7,835,516
Cost of sales (6,421,759)
Other operating income 49,609
Other operating expenses (3,124,294)

Loss before tax (1,660,928)
Income tax expense (88,622)

Decrease in Group's loss attributable to shareholders (1,749,550)

The effect of the disposal on the financial position of the Group as of the end of the financial year is as follows:

Group
2009

RM

Net assets disposed off:
Property, plant and equipment 69,285
Deferred development expenditure 878,288
Inventories 78,276
Trade receivables 1,292,658
Other receivables and prepaid expenses 1,809,729
Cash and bank balances 310,737
Trade payables (283,252)
Other payables and accrued expenses (4,147,201)
Amount owing to directors (1,140,768)
Tax liabilities (51,253)
Deferred tax liabilities (571)
Minority interest (4,667)

Net liabilities (1,188,739)
Gain on disposal to the Group 1,423,393

Net proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries 234,654
Less: Cash and bank balances (310,737)

Cash flow on disposal, net of cash and cash equivalents disposed off (76,083)

Notes to the Financial Statements (cont’d)
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14) INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Intellectual

Goodwill on Development property
consolidation costs costs Total

RM RM RM RM 
GROUP
2009

Cost
As of 1st January 2009 – 9,189,532 440,000 9,629,532
Additions during the financial year – 4,416,351 – 4,416,351
Arising from acquisition of subsidiary 26,784,937 – – 26,784,937
Arising from disposal of subsidiaries – (1,800,570) – (1,800,570)
Written off – (2,335,351) – (2,335,351)
Exchange differences – (20,368) – (20,368)

As of 31st December 2009 26,784,937 9,449,594 440,000 36,674,531

Accumulated amortisation
As of 1st January 2009 – 4,779,510 138,345 4,917,855
Charge for the financial year – 2,039,750 20,004 2,059,754
Arising from disposal of subsidiaries – (922,282) – (922,282)
Exchange differences – (7,208) – (7,208)

As of 31st December 2009 – 5,889,770 158,349 6,048,119

Net 26,784,937 3,559,824 281,651 30,626,412

2008

Cost
As of 1st January 2008 – 8,052,487 939,998 8,992,485
Additions during the financial year – 957,692 – 957,692
Written off – – (499,998) (499,998)
Exchange differences – 179,353 – 179,353

As of 31st December 2008 – 9,189,532 440,000 9,629,532

Accumulated amortisation
As of 1st January 2008 – 2,836,307 118,341 2,954,648
Charge for the financial year – 1,911,195 145,004 2,056,199
Written off – – (125,000) (125,000)
Exchange differences – 32,008 – 32,008

As of 31st December 2008 – 4,779,510 138,345 4,917,855

Net – 4,410,022 301,655 4,711,677
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14) INTANGIBLE ASSETS (cont’d)

Intellectual
Development property

costs costs Total
RM RM RM 

COMPANY
2009

Cost
As of 1st January 2009 7,368,594 440,000 7,808,594
Additions during the financial year 4,416,351 – 4,416,351
Written off (2,335,351) – (2,335,351)

As of 31st December 2009 9,449,594 440,000 9,889,594

Accumulated amortisation
As of 1st January 2009 4,135,093 138,345 4,273,438
Charge for the financial year 1,754,677 20,004 1,774,681

As of 31st December 2009 5,889,770 158,349 6,048,119

Net 3,559,824 281,651 3,841,475

2008

Cost
As of 1st January 2008 6,410,902 440,000 6,850,902
Additions during the financial year 957,692 – 957,692

As of 31st December 2008 7,368,594 440,000 7,808,594

Accumulated amortisation
As of 1st January 2008 2,557,087 118,341 2,675,428
Charge for the financial year 1,578,006 20,004 1,598,010

As of 31st December 2008 4,135,093 138,345 4,273,438

Net 3,233,501 301,655 3,535,156

15) DEFERRED TAXATION
Group

2009 2008 
RM RM

Deferred tax assets
As of beginning of financial year 119,427 73,657
Recognised in income statements (Note 9) (119,132) 45,770

As of end of financial year 295 119,427

Deferred tax liabilities
As of beginning of financial year 1,445 5,039
Recognised in income statements (Note 9) 31,477 (3,594)

As of end of financial year 32,922 1,445

Presented after appropriate offsetting as follows:

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (32,627) 117,982

The recognised deferred tax assets are made up of unutilised tax losses while the recognised deferred tax liabilities
are made up of temporary differences between tax capital allowances and book depreciation of property, plant 
and equipment.

Notes to the Financial Statements (cont’d)
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16) INVENTORIES
Group Company 

2009 2008 2009 2008 
RM RM RM RM

At cost:
Finished goods – 578,682 – 180,000
Computer parts 6,167,040 – – –

6,167,040 578,682 – 180,000

17) TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAID EXPENSES

Group Company 
2009 2008 2009 2008 

RM RM RM RM

Trade receivables 41,743,168 15,406,117 6,416,529 10,702,717
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (5,878,878) (7,185,764) (5,566,194) (4,863,211)

Net 35,864,290 8,220,353 850,335 5,839,506

Trade receivables comprise amounts receivable for the sale of goods and services rendered. The credit terms of the
Group and of the Company granted to their customers are assessed and approved on a case by case basis.

Other receivables and prepaid expenses consist of:
Group Company 

2009 2008 2009 2008 
RM RM RM RM

Other receivables 10,540,874 2,413,498 7,550,290 5,385,564
Refundable deposits 20,700 1,333,721 20,700 457,873
Prepaid expenses – 759,594 – –
Deferred cost – 330,128 – –

10,561,574 4,836,941 7,570,990 5,843,437

The currency profile of trade and other receivables is as follows:
Group Company 

2009 2008 2009 2008 
RM RM RM RM

Ringgit Malaysia 45,732,069 9,641,191 8,400,625 11,225,070
Hong Kong Dollar – 78,846 – –
Renminbi – 913,814 – –
US Dollar 135,261 – – –
Indonesia Rupiah 537,834 – – –

46,405,164 10,633,851 8,400,625 11,225,070

18) AMOUNT OWING BY/(TO) DIRECTORS

The amount owing by/(to) directors, which arose mainly from expenses paid on behalf and advances given, is
unsecured, interest-free and bears no fixed terms of repayment.

19) FIXED DEPOSITS WITH LICENSED BANK

The fixed deposits of the Group in 2009 are charged to licensed bank as security for banking facilities granted to a
subsidiary as disclosed in Notes 23 and 25. The weighted average effective interest rate of fixed deposits during
the financial year is 2.3% per annum and the maturities of fixed deposits as of 31st December 2009 were 4 to 
12 months.
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20) SHARE CAPITAL
Group and Company

No. of ordinary shares Group and Company
of RM0.10 each 2009 2008

2009 2008 RM RM

a) Authorised:
Balance as of beginning of financial year 250,000,000 250,000,000 25,000,000 25,000,000
Created during the financial year 450,000,000 – 45,000,000 –

Balance as of end of financial year 700,000,000 250,000,000 70,000,000 25,000,000

b) Issued and fully paid:
Balance as of beginning of financial year 186,253,033 185,408,533 18,625,303 18,540,853
Issued during the financial year 382,500,000 844,500 38,250,000 84,450

Balance as of end of financial year 568,753,033 186,253,033 56,875,303 18,625,303

As approved by the shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 23rd November 2009, the
authorised share capital of the Company was increased from RM25,000,000 to RM70,000,000 during the
financial year by the creation of additional 450,000,000 ordinary shares of RM0.10 each. Also, the issued and
paid-up share capital of the Company was increased from RM18,625,303 to RM56,875,303 by the allotment
of 382,500,000 new ordinary shares of RM0.10 each at par for the purpose of acquisition of 3,957,196 ordinary
shares of RM1 each in Ariantec Sdn. Bhd., representing 100% equity interest in the said company.

Pursuant to the approval from the relevant authorities and authority given to the directors of the Company via
the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 16th June 2004, the issued and paid-up share capital of the
Company in 2008 was increased from RM18,540,853 to RM18,625,303 through the issuance of 688,000 and
156,500 new ordinary shares of RM0.10 each for cash via Employees Share Option Scheme (ESOS) of the
Company at an exercise price of RM0.12 and RM0.135 per ordinary share respectively.

The new ordinary shares rank pari passu with the then existing ordinary shares of the Company.

The Company implemented an ESOS which came into effect on 27th July 2004. The ESOS is governed by the
bye-laws which were approved by the shareholders on 16th June 2004.

The salient features of the ESOS are as follows:

a) the total number of new shares which may be made available under the scheme shall not exceed fifteen
per cent (15%) of the total issued and paid-up share capital of the Company at any point of time during
the existence of the ESOS;

b) eligible persons are confirmed employees including full-time executive directors of the Group;

c) the aggregate number of new shares to be offered to selected employee in accordance with the ESOS shall
be determined at the discretion of the Option Committee. No option shall be granted for less than 100 shares;

d) the option price may be at a discount of not more than ten per cent (10%) from the five (5) days weighted
average market price of the underlying shares preceding the date of offer or at par value of the ordinary
shares of the Company, whichever is higher;

e) the ESOS shall be in force for a period of five (5) years and extendable to ten (10) years from the date of
the first offer; and

f) the options granted may be exercised up to twenty per cent (20%) of the total options granted per annum
on a straight line basis over the duration of the scheme.

The exercise period for the above options lapsed on 26th July 2009.

WARRANTS

In 2006, the Company issued 78,971,566 warrants 2005/2010 ("Warrants") pursuant to a renounceable rights
issue on the basis of three (3) Warrants for every four (4) ordinary shares of RM0.10 each held. The Warrants
entitle the holders to subscribe for new ordinary shares of RM0.10 each within five years from the date of
issuance of the Warrants to the expiry date (the period referred to as the "Exercise Period") and any warrants
not exercised by that date shall thereafter lapse and cease to be valid.

Notes to the Financial Statements (cont’d)
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20) SHARE CAPITAL (cont’d)

Some of the main features of the Warrants are:

(a) the Warrants were issued in registered form and are constituted and governed by a deed poll executed by 
the Company;

(b) each Warrant entitles the holder to subscribe for one (1) new ordinary share of RM0.10 each at an exercise
price of RM0.13 per share at any time during the Exercise Period;

(c) the Warrant holders are not entitled to any voting rights or to participate in any distribution and/or offer of
further securities in the Company until and unless such Warrant holders exercise their Warrants;

(d) the new shares to be alloted and issued pursuant to the exercise of the Warrants shall, rank pari passu in all
respects with the then existing shares, save and except that they shall not be entitled to any dividends, rights,
allotments and/or other distributions, the entitlement date of which is prior to the date of the allotment of the
new shares; and

(e) the exercise price of the Warrants and/or the number of Warrants may from time to time be adjusted in
accordance with the provisions in the deed poll.

21) RESERVES
Group Company 

2009 2008 2009 2008 
RM RM RM RM

Non Distributable Reserve:
Share premium reserve 2,685,410 2,685,410 2,685,410 2,685,410
Warrant reserve 2,127,749 2,127,749 2,127,749 2,127,749
Share option reserve – 161,139 – 161,139
Exchange fluctuation reserve (377,593) (369,707) – –

Accumulated loss (11,195,742) (5,346,797) (13,677,119) (4,944,312)

(6,760,176) (742,206) (8,863,960) 29,986

Share premium
Group and Company
2009 2008 

RM RM

Balance as of beginning of financial year 2,685,410 2,622,670

Add:
Issuance of shares at premium:
- Pursuant to ESOS of 688,000 ordinary shares at premium of

RM0.02 per ordinary share – 13,760
- Pursuant to ESOS of 156,500 ordinary shares at premium of

RM0.035 per ordinary share – 5,478
Share options exercised – 43,502

Balance as of end of financial year 2,685,410 2,685,410

Share option reserve

The share option reserve represents the equity-settled share options granted to employees. This reserve is made
up of the cumulative value of services received from employees recorded on grant of share options.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve is used to record exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations whose functional currencies are different from that of the Group's presentation
currency. It is also used to record the exchange differences arising from monetary items which form part of the
Group's net investment in foreign operations, where the monetary item is denominated in either the functional
currency of the reporting entity or the foreign operation.
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22) HIRE PURCHASE CREDITORS
Group 

2009 2008 
RM RM

Total hire purchase instalments payable 369,407 –
Less :
Hire purchase interest in suspense (44,208) –

Principal outstanding 325,199 –

Less:
Portion payable within the next 12 months

(included in current liabilities) (74,821) –

Portion payable after the next 12 months: 250,378 –

Included in the portion payable after the next 12 months consist of:
Repayable between 1 and 2 years 80,447 –
Repayable between 2 and 5 years 169,931 –

250,378 –

The interest rate on hire purchase is at 3.57% per annum.

23) TERM LOANS
Group Company 

2009 2008 2009 2008 
RM RM RM RM

Secured term loans 19,224,956 2,815,839 2,690,994 2,815,839
Less: Portion due within the next 12 months (9,473,660) (216,665) (176,660) (216,665)

Portion payable after the next 12 months 9,751,296 2,599,174 2,514,334 2,599,174

The non current portion of these term loans are repayable as follows:

2010 – 183,588 – 183,588
2011 6,978,754 173,754 172,754 173,754
2012 616,021 186,593 185,059 186,593
2013 and thereafter 2,156,521 2,055,239 2,156,521 2,055,239

The term loans bear interest at rates between 4.57% to 7.15% per annum and are secured by the following:

i) Legal charge over the Company's landed property;
ii) Lien on fixed deposits of a subsidiary;
iii) Joint and several guarantee by all the directors of the Company, a subsidiary and a third party; and
iv) Legal charge over a subsidiary's fixed and floating charges over the assets of that subsidiary.

24) TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

Trade and other payables comprise amounts outstanding for trade and ongoing costs. The average credit period
granted to the Group and the Company for trade purchases is 60 days.

Other payables and accrued expenses consist of:
Group Company 

2009 2008 2009 2008 
RM RM RM RM

Other payables 1,727,927 1,644,696 108,941 662,968
Accrued expenses 102,570 937,024 24,000 311,180

1,830,497 2,581,720 132,941 974,148

66 ARIANTEC GLOBAL BERHAD (Formerly known as Global Soft (MSC) Bhd.) (533441-W)
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24) TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED EXPENSES (cont’d)

The currency profile of trade and other payables is as follows:

Group Company 
2009 2008 2009 2008 

RM RM RM RM

Ringgit Malaysia 13,849,224 898,141 108,941 664,593
Hong Kong Dollar – 63,166 – –
Renminbi – 1,111,026 – –
US Dollar 954,645 – – –

14,803,869 2,072,333 108,941 664,593

25) BANK BORROWINGS
Group Company 

2009 2008 2009 2008 
RM RM RM RM

Bank overdraft 974,085 – – –
Bankers' acceptances 7,756,462 – – –
Term loan - current portion (Note 23) 9,473,660 216,665 176,660 216,665

18,204,207 216,665 176,660 216,665

As of 31st December 2009, the Group has bank credit facilities (excluding term loan as mentioned in Note 23)
totalling RM13,600,000 obtained from licensed banks. These facilities bear interest range from 1.75% - 9.00% 
per annum and are secured by the following:

i) Lien on fixed deposits of a subsidiary; and
ii) Joint and several guarantee by all the Directors of a subsidiary and a third party.

26) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Group Company 

2009 2008 2009 2008 
RM RM RM RM

Cash and cash equivalents carried forward 
consist of:

Cash and bank balances 3,460,101 247,278 27,830 4,183
Bank overdraft (Note 25) (974,085) – – –

2,486,016 247,278 27,830 4,183

The currency profile of cash and cash equivalents is as follows:
Group Company 

2009 2008 2009 2008 
RM RM RM RM

Ringgit Malaysia 2,486,016 26,054 27,830 4,183
Hong Kong Dollar – 133 – –
Renminbi – 221,091 – –

2,486,016 247,278 27,830 4,183
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27) SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

In the normal course of business, the Group and the Company undertake on agreed terms and prices, transactions
with its related companies and other related parties.

a) In addition to related party disclosures mentioned elsewhere in the financial statements, set out below are
other significant related party transactions. The related party transactions listed below were carried out on
terms and conditions obtainable in transactions with unrelated parties unless otherwise stated.

Company 
2009 2008 

RM RM

Royalty receivable from subsidiaries – 261,524

b) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management during the financial year are as follows:

Group Company 
2009 2008 2009 2008 

RM RM RM RM

Short-term employee benefits 379,750 406,151 46,252 192,860
Post employment benefits – 26,640 – 19,440

Total 379,750 432,791 46,252 212,300

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly. The key management personnel of the Group
includes the directors, Chief Executive Officer and Heads of Finance and Information Technology of the Group.

Included in the total key management personnel are:
Group Company 

2009 2008 2009 2008 
RM RM RM RM

Directors' remuneration (Note 7) 345,675 386,566 46,252 131,120

Executive directors of the Company and other members of key management have been granted the following
number of options under the ESOS:

Company 
2009 2008 

RM RM

As of 1st January 3,281,730 4,096,230
Exercised – (814,500)
Lapsed (3,281,730) –

As of 31st December – 3,281,730

The share options were granted on the same terms and conditions as those offered to other employees of the
Group (Note 20).

28) SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Segmental information is presented only in respect of the Group's geographical segments by location of customers.
There is no information on business segments as the Group is principally involved in the research and development
of software, system design, integration and installation and provision of information technology services.

Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to segment as well as those that can be
allocated on a reasonable basis.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the financial year to acquire segment assets that are
expected to be used for more than one year.

Intersegment pricing is determined on an arm's length basis under terms, conditions and prices not materially
different from transactions with unrelated parties.

68 ARIANTEC GLOBAL BERHAD (Formerly known as Global Soft (MSC) Bhd.) (533441-W)
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29) MATERIAL LITIGATIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

In 2005, the Company applied for amongst others, an injunction against certain third parties for infringement of
copyright. The said third parties filed a statement of defence and counter claim for, amongst others, special
damages of RM903,690. Subsequently, the Company filed for an application to strike out the counter claim on the
grounds that the claim is frivolous and baseless in nature. The defendant had proposed to the Company for a
possible out of court settlement and the Company is currently awaiting their proposed terms of settlement.
Accordingly, no provision for loss has been made in the financial statements.

In 2007, the Company has applied for an injunction against a competitor of the Company on grounds of defamation.
The Company is seeking punitive damages amounting to RM2million against the competitor for libel against the
Company and for malicious falsehood. The solicitors of the Company are of the opinion that there is an element of
defamation involved and thus, the Company has a good chance of obtaining the injunction. As of the date of this
report, no date has yet being fixed by the court.

In 2007, the Company filed a Writ of Summon against a customer of the Company for an outstanding payment due
of RM27,380 in respect of the installation and implementation of the Company's software. However, the defendant
made a counter-claim for RM1,565,440 pertaining to staff costs incurred to remedy the alleged defects of the
Company's software and for loss of profit, loss of business opportunity and replacement cost which arose due to
the said alleged defects. Based on the opinion of the solicitors of the Company, the counter-claim is unlikely to be
successful under the prevailing laws. In 2008, the lawyers for the defendant served on the Company a court order
to transfer the case to the High Court. As of the date of this report, no date has yet being fixed by the Court.

Subsequent to the financial year end, a subsidiary of the Company, namely Ariantec Sdn. Bhd. was served with a
Writ of Summons by a sub-contractor, Johnson Controls (M) Sdn. Bhd.("Plaintiff"), claims against the subsidiary,
arise from a Letter of Award dated 9th July 2008, pertaining to sub-contract work undertaken by the Plaintiff. The
Plaintiff claims that the subsidiary has failed to pay in full the sum certified and has also failed to certify the value
of work done by the Plaintiff which the subsidiary is disputing. The subsidiary will be appointing legal counsel to
respond to this matter and the claim will be contested vigorously. In the event that the subsidiary losses the case,
the expected losses arising from the litigation are RM2,130,393, excluding interest, if any.

30) COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The following comparative amounts as of 31st December 2009 have been reclassified to confirm with current 
year's presentation:

As Reclassi- As previously
restated fication stated

RM RM RM

Other receivables and prepaid expenses 5,843,437 3,620,648 2,222,789
Amount owing by subsidiaries 585,293 (3,600,345) 4,185,638
Amount owing to subsidiaries 781,456 20,303 761,153
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DISTRIBUTION SCHEDULE OF SHAREHOLDERS
Size of Holdings No. of % of No. of % of Issued

Shareholders Shareholders Shares Share Capital

Less than 100 46 1.64 2,302 0.00

100 - 1,000 77 2.75 39,371 0.01

1,001 - 10,000 984 35.14 6,297,364 1.11

10,001 - 100,000 1,314 46.93 55,935,150 9.83

100,001 to less than 5% of issued shares 376 13.43 171,671,546 30.18

5% and above of issued shares 3 0.11 334,807,300 58.87

Total 2,800 100.00 568,753,033 100.00

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 4 MAY 2010
Direct Interest Indirect Interest

No. of Shares No. of Shares
No. Shareholders Held % Held %

1 Vincent Loy Ghee Yaw 138,139,875 24.29 – –

2 Chen Kong Kheng 100,009,675 17.58 – –

3 Metronic Global Berhad 96,657,750 16.99 – –

DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS AS AT 4 MAY 2010
Direct Interest Indirect Interest

No. of Shares No. of Shares
No. Directors Held % Held %

1 Datuk Low Kok Thai 20,481,886 3.60 – –

2 Vincent Loy Ghee Yaw 138,139,875 24.29 – –

3 Chen Kong Kheng 100,009,675 17.58 – –

4 Hee Chee Keong 167,000 0.03 – –

5 Lee Teck Meng – – – –

6 Dato' Ng Bong Ching – – – –

71A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 0 9

Analysis of Shareholdings
as at 4 May 2010

Authorised Capital RM70,000,000

Issued & Fully Paid up Capital RM56,875,303.30

Class of Shares Ordinary shares of RM0.10 each fully paid

Voting Rights One vote per RM0.10 share
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THIRTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS
(without aggregating securities from different securities accounts belonging to the same person)

Name No. of Shares %

1 Vincent Loy Ghee Yaw 138,139,875 24.29

2 Chen Kong Kheng 100,009,675 17.58

3 Metronic Global Berhad 96,657,750 16.99

4 Datuk Low Kok Thai 20,481,886 3.60

5 Evergreen Assets Holding Sdn Bhd 6,012,850 1.06

6 Cimsec Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd 6,000,000 1.05
- CIMB Bank for Koh Cheng Keong

7 Cheah Lai Cheng 5,630,000 0.99

8 Ng Swee Aun 3,747,000 0.66

9 Dato’ Low Kok Chuan 3,586,900 0.63

10 Kenanga Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd 3,000,000 0.53
- Pledged Securities Account for Evergreen Assets Holding Sdn Bhd

11 Lee Chong Yeow 3,000,000 0.53

12 Alliancegroup Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd 2,884,000 0.51
- Pledged Securities Account for Lim Hun Swee

13 Kenanga Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd 2,720,000 0.48
- Exempt An for Phillip Securities Pte Ltd

14 Lim Yong Hua 2,500,000 0.44

15 Yap Chee Kuan 2,399,700 0.42

16 Lee Huang Yu-Mei 1,800,000 0.32

17 Kuong Ah Kew 1,616,374 0.28

18 Affin Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd 1,500,000 0.26
- Pledged Securities Account for Tan Boon Pock

19 Teoh Goay Imm 1,300,000 0.23

20 Wu Kock Aun 1,300,000 0.23

21 How Teck Soon 1,200,000 0.21

22 Norazian Binti Mohamed Jamil 1,200,000 0.21

23 Ooi Sang Booi 1,155,800 0.20

24 Kenanga Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd 1,128,200 0.20
- Pledged Securities Account for Tan Kit

25 RHB Capital Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd 1,113,099 0.20
- Pledged Securities Account for Chia Kee Siong

26 Teok Moi Moi 1,110,000 0.19

27 Wee Tiew Toon 1,074,050 0.19

28 Public Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd 1,065,000 0.19
- Pledged Securities Account for Zulkifli Bin Abdul Kadir

29 Loh Sai Eng 1,001,000 0.18

30 HDM Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd 1,000,000 0.18
- Pledged Securities Account for Leou Thiam Lai

TOTAL 415,333,159 73.03
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DISTRIBUTION SCHEDULE OF WARRANTHOLDERS
Size of Holdings No. of No. of

Warrantholders % Warrants %

Less than 100 45 4.03 2,366 0.00

100 - 1,000 31 2.78 18,925 0.02

1,001 - 10,000 342 30.62 2,112,775 2.68

10,001 - 100,000 541 48.43 22,756,350 28.82

100,001 to less than 5% of issued warrants 158 14.15 54,081,150 68.48

5% and above of issued warrants 0 0.00 0 0.00

Total 1,117 100.00 78,971,566 100.00

DIRECTORS' WARRANTHOLDINGS AS AT 4 MAY 2010
Direct Interest Indirect Interest

No. of Warrants No. of Warrants
No. Directors Held % Held %

1 Datuk Low Kok Thai 93 * 39# *

2 Vincent Loy Ghee Yaw – – – –

3 Chen Kong Kheng – – – –

4 Hee Chee Keong – – – –

5 Lee Teck Meng – – – –

6 Dato’ Ng Bong Ching – – – –

* Negligible

# Deemed interest by virtue of his interest in Binary Process Sdn Bhd pursuant to Section 6A of the Companies Act,
1965

73A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 0 9

Analysis of Warrantholdings
as at 4 May 2010
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THIRTY LARGEST WARRANTHOLDERS
(without aggregating securities from different securities accounts belonging to the same person)

Name No. of Warrants %

1 Mayban Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd 3,044,800 3.86
- Pledged Securities Account for Chia Boon Seng

2 Yap Chee Kuan 1,661,800 2.10

3 Yee Kim Mun 1,200,000 1.52

4 Lee Mee Leng 1,150,000 1.46

5 Poh Mei Chen @ Amy Poh 1,104,900 1.40

6 Lau Chin Kok 1,100,000 1.39

7 Md Taib Bin Ismail 1,009,000 1.28

8 Affin Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd 1,000,000 1.27
- Pledged Securities Account for Tan Boon Pock

9 Ng Chee Wai 1,000,000 1.27

10 Tam Kock Kay @ Tan Kock Kay 930,000 1.18

11 Chen Seong Lee 896,000 1.13

12 Ong Chai Hock 860,400 1.09

13 CIMSEC Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd 834,000 1.06
- Exempt An for CIMB-GK Securities Pte Ltd

14 Teh Chong Yee 800,150 1.01

15 RHB Capital Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd 758,900 0.96
- Pledged Securities Account for Sew Chooi Lan

16 TA Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd 741,400 0.94
- Pledged Securities Account for Yee Boon Chee

17 Lee Yon Hin 695,000 0.88

18 CIMSEC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd 667,400 0.85
- Pledged Securities Account for Ooi Lye Choon

19 Cheong Boon Long 650,000 0.82

20 Mayban Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd 646,400 0.82
- Pledged Securities Account for Siew Chu Kok

21 Lee Eng Min 623,300 0.79

22 Victor Lim Fung Tuang 620,000 0.78

23 Lim Geok Tzao 610,000 0.77

24 Chow Yuet Ling 600,000 0.76

25 Soh Keh Woei 600,000 0.76

26 Lim Yam Hoong 531,000 0.67

27 Tan Tow Soon 512,700 0.65

28 Lee Chee Leong 500,000 0.63

29 Ng Chin Keong 500,000 0.63

30 Public Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd 500,000 0.63
- Pledged Securities Account for Yap Yeong Huei

TOTAL 26,347,150 33.36
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I/We.....................................................................................................................................................................................................
(FULL NAME IN BLOCK LETTERS)

NRIC No./Passport No./Company No................................................................................................................................................

of.........................................................................................................................................................................................................
(FULL ADDRESS)

being a *member/members of ARIANTEC GLOBAL BERHAD, hereby appoint................................................................................

.......................................................................................................................NRIC/ Passport No......................................................
(FULL NAME IN BLOCK LETTERS)

of.........................................................................................................................................................................................................
(FULL ADDRESS)

*and/ or failing him/ her,............................................................ ....................NRIC/ Passport No......................................................
(FULL NAME IN BLOCK LETTERS)

of.........................................................................................................................................................................................................
(FULL ADDRESS)

or the Chairman of the Meeting as *my/ our proxy to attend and vote for *me/ us on *my/ our behalf at the Ninth Annual General
Meeting of the Company to be held at Maple Room, Level C, One World Hotel, First Avenue, Off Dataran Bandar Utama, 47800
Petaling Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan  on Tuesday, 29 June 2010 at 10:00 a.m. and at any adjournment thereof:-.

NO. RESOLUTIONS FOR AGAINST

1 Adoption of Audited Financial Statements and Reports

2 Approval of Directors’ Fees

3 Re-election of Datuk Low Kok Thai

4 Re-election of Mr. Vincent Loy Ghee Yaw

5 Re-election of Mr. Chen Kong Kheng

6 Appointment of Auditors

7 Authority to Issue Shares pursuant to Section 132D

(Please indicate with an “X” in the space provided above as to how you wish your votes to be cast. If you do not do so, the proxy/
proxies will vote, or abstain from voting at *his/ her discretion.)

Dated this.........................day of June, 2010
..........................................................................

Signature/ Common Seal of Shareholder

Tel:......................................................

* Delete if inapplicable

Ariantec Global Berhad
(533441-W)

Ariantec Global Berhad
(533441-W)

P R O X Y  F O R M

No. of ordinary shares held

NOTES

i. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint two proxies to attend and vote on his behalf. 
A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company

ii. Where a member appoints two proxies, the appointment shall be invalid unless he specifies the proportion of his shareholding to be
represented by each proxy.

iii. Where a member is an authorized nominee as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act 1991, it may appoint at
least one (1) proxy with ordinary shares of the Company standing to the credit of the said securities account.

iv. The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointer or his attorney duly authorized in writing or, 
if the appointer is a corporation, under its common seal, or the hand of its attorney duly authorized. 

v. The instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, Lot 10, The Highway Centre, Jalan
51/205, 46050 Petaling Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the time appointed for holding the
Meeting or adjourned Meeting.
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Please Fold Here

Please Fold Here

The Company Secretary

ARIANTEC GLOBAL BERHAD (533441-W)

Lot 10, The Highway Centre
Jalan 51/205

46050 Petaling Jaya
Selangor Darul Ehsan

Affix
Stamp
Here
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